Public Document Pack

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Gibson Building
Chief Executive Gibson Drive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4LZ
West Malling (01732) 844522

NB - This agenda contains proposals, Contact: Committee Services
recommendations and options. These do committee.services@tmbc.co.uk
not represent Council policy or decisions 12 October 2016

until they have received proper
consideration through the full decision
making process.

To: MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

Dear Sir/Madam

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the General Purposes Committee to be
held in the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill, West Malling on Thursday, 20th
October, 2016 commencing at 7.30 pm

Yours faithfully
JULIE BEILBY

Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1 - PUBLIC

1. Apologies for absence 5-6

2. Declarations of interest 7-8



10.

Minutes 9-14

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of General Purposes
Committee held on 27 June 2016

Minutes of Electoral Review Working Group 15 - 106

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Electoral Review Working Group
held on 19 July 2016 (associated report also attached)

Decisions to be taken under Delegated Powers

2018 Review of Parliamentary Constituencies 107 - 108
Request for Dispensation - Code of Conduct 109 - 114
Update of the Flexible Retirement Policy 115-124
Urgent ltems 125 - 126

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Matters for consideration in Private

Exclusion of Press and Public 127 - 128

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

PART 2 - PRIVATE

Urgent Items 129 - 130

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.



MEMBERSHIP

Clir O C Baldock (Chairman)
Clir L J O'Toole (Vice-Chairman)

Clir M A C Balfour Clir D Markham
Clir Mrs S Bell Clir S C Perry

Clir P F Bolt Clir RV Roud

Clir M A Coffin Clir C P Smith

Clir N J Heslop Clir Ms S V Spence

Clir B J Luker Clir M Taylor



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Apologies for absence

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Declarations of interest

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

Monday, 27th June, 2016

Present: Clir O C Baldock (Chairman), Clir M A C Balfour, Clir P F Bolt,
Clir M A Coffin, Clir N J Heslop, Clir B J Luker, Clir S C Perry and
Clir C P Smith

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L J O'Toole
and Mrs S Bell

PART 1 - PUBLIC

GP 16/10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the
Code of Conduct.

GP 16/11 MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes
Committee held on 1 February 2016 be approved as a correct record

and signed by the Chairman.

MATTERS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

GP 16/12 HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY UPDATE

The report of the Director of Central Services presented an updated
Human Resources Strategy which provided an overview of the Council’s
approach to managing its employees. Details were given of progress in
achieving the improvement priorities in the Strategy for 2015/16 together
with actions to be implemented in the period April 2016 — March 2017
(the Workforce Development Plan). The updated strategy also
contained the statutory equality monitoring required by the Equality Act
2010.

RECOMMENDED: That the outcomes of the equality monitoring D 4
reported in Section 4 of the Human Resources Strategy, as set out in
Annex 1 to the report, be noted and the actions listed in Section 5
thereof be commended to the Council.

* Referred to Council

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE

GP 16/13 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Chairman moved, it was seconded and

Page 9



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 27 June 2016

GP 16/14

RESOLVED: That as public discussion would disclose exempt
information, the following matters be considered in private.

PART 2 - PRIVATE

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PARAGRAPH 3, PART 3 OF THE
CONSTITUTION

ESTABLISHMENT CHANGES

(LGA 1972 Sch 12A Paragraph 1 — Information relating to an
individual)

The report of the Director of Central Services presented for approval a
number of establishment changes recommended by the Management
Team arising from the on-going operational management of the
Council’s services. It was noted that the proposals would result in net
savings of £89,000.

Members recognised the cross-cutting nature of the various reviews that
had been undertaken with the objective of ensuring that resources were
in place at the right level to deliver services in accordance with the
Savings and Transformation Strategy. They expressed appreciation of
the flexibility, commitment and contribution of staff and requested that
thanks be conveyed accordingly.

RESOLVED: That the proposals and establishment adjustments set out
in the report be endorsed as follows:

(1 the post of Customer Support Assistant - DB0005, 21 hours per
week, scale 2/3 be deleted with effect from 30 June 2016;

@ the post of Services Administrator — DA0201, 20 hours per
week, scale 4/5 be deleted with effect from 30 June 2016;

3 the two Mayors Assistant posts — DA1301 and DA1302, 19.5
hours per week, scale 4/5 be deleted with effect from 30 June
2016;

@) three new Administration Officer posts — scale 3/4 at 21 hours
per week, 20 hours per week, and 19.5 hours per week be
created and the incumbents of posts DB0005, DA0201 and
DA1301 be transferred on their current hours into these newly
created posts with effect from 1 July 2016. The individuals in
posts DA0201 and DA1301 will receive 3 years of salary
protection in accordance with Section J of the Council's
Reorganisation, Redundancy and Redeployment Procedure;

Page 10



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 27 June 2016

©)

©)

(8)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

post DAO0213, currently scale 4/5 be redesignated from
Administration Officer to Senior Administration Officer and
regraded scale 6 with effect from 1 July 2016;

the existing post of Administrative Assistant (DA0204) be
redesignated Administration Officer and regraded scale 3/4 with
effect from 1July 2016;

the posts of Electoral Services Officer numbers DC0402 and
DCO0403 be regraded from scale 2/3 to 3/4, with a bar at the top
of scale 3, and the hours be formalised as 29.5 hours and 24
hours per week respectively with effect from 1 July 2016;

the post of Solicitor - DRO007 be regraded from grade M6 to M5
and redesignated Principal Litigation Solicitor with effect from
1 July 2016;

the post of Elections and Special Projects Manager - DC0498,
scale M6, 37 hours per week be deleted with effect from 30 June
2016;

a new post of Head of Electoral and Democratic Services scale
M5, 37 hours per week be created with effect from 1 July 2016;

a sum of £39,950 accruing from the reduction in hours of post
DB0002 be ring-fenced pending a corporate review of the
Customer Services function;

the post of Media and Communications Manager — DA1202,
18.5 hours per week, scale M8 be deleted with immediate effect;

a new post of Media and Communications Officer, 22 hours per
week, scale 3/5 be created with immediate effect;

one new post of Licensing Officer, 37 hours per week, scale 4/5
be created with immediate effect;

the post of Community Safety Assistant — DR0702, 27.5 hours
per week, scale 2/3 be deleted with immediate effect;

the post of Safer Towns Co-ordinator — DR0704, 28 hours per
week, scale 5 be deleted with immediate effect;

the post of Housing Needs Manager - DV0701, 37 hours per
week, scale M8 be deleted with effect from 17 July 2016 and on
that date the contract of employment of Mrs Lynn Wilders be
terminated on the grounds of redundancy and, in accordance
with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations, she

Page 11



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 27 June 2016

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(26)

(27)

(28)

(29)

should commence receipt of her pension from 18 July 2016 and
her redundancy payment should be calculated as set out in the
Restructuring, Redundancy and Redeployment Procedure;

the post of Housing Options Team Manager - DV0718, 37 hours
per week, scale SO be deleted with effect from 17 July 2016;

the post of Home Choice Team Leader - DV0719, 37 hours per
week, scale SO be deleted with effect from 17 July 2016;

the post of Housing Options and Support Manager, 37 hours per
week, scale M8 be created with effect from 18 July 2016;

the post of Housing Services Improvement Manager, 37 hours
per week, scale M9 be created with effect from 18 July 2016;

the two currently vacant posts of Home Choice Officer - DV0720
and DV0721, 37 hours per week, scale 1/2 be deleted with effect
from 17 July 2016;

two Housing Support Assistant posts, 37 hours per week,
scale 3 be created with effect from 18 July 2016;

the post of Housing Assistant — DV0905, 17.5 hours per week,
scale 1/2 be deleted with effect from 17 July 2016;

the post of Housing Administration Assistant — DV0722, 18.5
hours per week, scale 1/2 be deleted with effect from 17 July
2016;

the currently vacant post of Housing Support Assistant —
DV0707, 37 hours per week, scale 2/3 be deleted with effect
from 17 July 2016;

the Housing Options Officer post numbers DV0710, DV0713,
DV0714 and DV0717, 37 hours per week, scale 4/6 be
redesignated to Housing Options and Support Officer, 37 hours
per week, scale 5/6 with effect from 18 July 2016 and an
additional Housing Options and Support Officer post, 37 hours
per week, scale 5/6 be created with effect from 18 July 2016;

the post of Chief Housing Officer, 37 hours per week, M5 be
redesignated to Head of Housing Services with effect from
18 July 2016;

a revenue budget of £30,000 be created for commissioning
advice and work on transportation and infrastructure provision

Page 12



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 27 June 2016

(30)

(31)

(32)

(33)

(38)

(39)

(40)

41)

and be managed by the Planning Policy Manager in conjunction
with the Head of Planning;

the post of Senior Engineer - DE0208, 37 hours per week be
redesignated to Engineering Manager and re-graded from M9 to
M8 with effect from 1 July 2016;

a new Technical Support Officer post, 37 hours per week,
scale 5 be created with effect from 1 July 2016;

the vacant post of Senior Administration Assistant - DG3002,
33 hours per week, scale 3/4 be deleted with effect from 30 June
2016;

the hours of the post of Administration Assistant — DG3004 be
increased from 27.5 to 30.5 hours per week, scale 2/3 with effect
from 1 July 2016;

a new post of Administration Assistant, 18.5 hours per week,
scale 2/3 be created with effect from 1 July 2016;

the hours of the post of Administration Assistant - DG3009 be
increased from 22 to 28 hours per week, scale 1/2 with effect
from 1 July 2016;

the post of Senior Parks Officer DG0101, 22 hours per week,
grade SO be deleted on 20 October 2016;

a new post of Parks Officer, 37 hours per week, scale 6 be
created and appointment to this post be made on 24 October
2016;

the existing post of Assistant Parks Officer, DG0102 37 hours
per week, scale 3 be deleted with effect from 24 October 2016;

a new post of Assistant Parks Officer, 22.5 hours per week,
scale 4 be created with effect from 24 October 2016;

the redesignation of the full time post DG0404 from
Administration Assistant (scale 2/3) to Leisure Development
Assistant scale 3/4 be extended until 31 October 2016;

the extension of the hours of the temporary post of Youth & Play
Development Officer, post DG0402 be continued at their current
level of 37 hours per week until 31 August 2016 (at which point
the hours will return to their established level of 22.5 hours per
week);

Page 13



GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 27 June 2016

(42)

(43)

(44)

post DV0202 be redesignated to Health Improvement
Co-ordinator, re-graded from scale 5 to scale 6 and the hours be
increased from 30 to 37 per week, all with effect from 1 July
2016 until 31 March 2017;

the hours of the post of Health Improvement Assistant — DV0203
be increased from 20 to 37 hours per week from 1 July 2016
until 31 March 2017; and

the temporary post DV0299 Health Improvement Administrative
Assistant be extended until 31 March 2017.

The meeting ended at 8.22 pm

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

ELECTORAL REVIEW WORKING GROUP

Tuesday, 19th July, 2016

Present: Clir N JHeslop (Chairman), Clir M A C Balfour (Vice-Chairman),
Clir O C Baldock and Clir P J Montague

Councillor RV Roud was also present pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule No 15.21.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M A Coffin,
Mrs T Dean, D Lettington and A K Sullivan

PART 2 - PRIVATE

ER 15/5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There no were declarations of interest made in accordance with the
Code of Conduct.

ER15/6  MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Electoral Review
Working Group held on 6 January 2016 be approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

ER15/7 COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 2016

Members considered the responses to the consultation concerning the
Community Governance Review of the Kings Hill parish boundary, set
out in the report of the Chief Executive, and determined the final
proposal to be submitted for approval and publication by the General
Purposes Committee.

Terms of Reference for the Community Governance Review (CGR) and
Draft Proposals for the public consultation, which had commenced on 7
January, had been agreed at the previous meeting of the Electoral
Review Working Group. These were attached as Annexes 1 and 2 to
the report respectively.

An overview of the CGR process and timetable were outlined in the
report at paragraph 1.2.

The three proposals consulted upon all regarded the boundaries of
Kings Hill parish:

Pa1ge 15



ELECTORAL REVIEW WORKING GROUP 19 July 2016

- Proposal A1: That the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling and Larkfield parishes be amended to include the
area marked A1 on the map at Annex 3

- Proposal A2: That the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling and Larkfield parishes be amended such that the
area marked A2 on the map at Annex 3 remained within East
Malling and Larkfield parish

- Proposal B: That the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
Wateringbury parishes marked B on the map at Annex 3
remained within Wateringbury

A summary of the responses received during the public consultation was
attached as Annex 4 with detailed responses included at Annex 5 to the
report.

It was reported that there had been a very strong response to the
consultation and the responses, objections and concerns received had
been taken into account in producing a Final Proposal for Member
consideration:

- It was proposed that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling and Larkfield parishes be amended to include the
area marked A1 on the map, set out in paragraph 1.7.1, within
Kings Hill.

- In producing this Final Proposal Members noted that the Draft
Proposals for Area A2 and Area B had been endorsed and that
no change to those areas was proposed.

RECOMMENDED: That

(1) the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area A1 was
transferred to Kings Hill be agreed;

(2) the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area A2 was not
transferred to Kings Hill be agreed;

(3) Area A3 be not transferred to Kings Hill; and
(4) the Final Proposal set out at paragraph 1.7 of the report, and
reproduced above, be agreed and presented to the General

Purposes Committee for publication and adoption, such that the
boundary be amended from the May 2019 elections.

The meeting ended at 7.45 pm

Pagé 16



TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
ELECTORAL REVIEW WORKING GROUP
19 July 2016

Report of the Chief Executive

Non Delegated

11

111

112

12

121

ERWG

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 2016

To consider the responses to the consultation concerning the Community
Governance Review of the Kings Hill parish boundary, and to determine and
agree the final proposal to be submitted for approval and publication by the
General Purposes Committee.

Introduction

Members will recall that, at the meeting of 6 January 2016, the Terms of
Reference (ToR) for the Community Governance Review were agreed. These
were published the day after General Purposes (1 February, published 2
February), signifying the formal start of the Review. A copy of the ToR is attached
at Annex 1.

At that same meeting, Members agreed the Draft Proposals on which a public
consultation commenced on 2 February 2016. A copy of the Draft Proposals is
attached at Annex 2.

Overview of the CGR process
The stages of the CGR are as follows;
1) The Council publishes its Terms of Reference. Completed February 2016

2) The Council publishes its Draft Proposals, and a formal consultation
commences. Consultation closed 9 May 2016

3) The Council, taking into account the results of the consultation, makes a
decision on the outcome of the CGR. This meeting, and GP this autumn.

4) The Council then publishes the Final Proposals.
5) The formal Re-organisation Order is then made.

6) Any changes to parish boundaries take effect at the next scheduled
elections in May 2019.

Page 17 19 July 2016



13

131

132

133

Legislative Requirements for a CGR

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (LGPIH) and
statutory guidance set out the requirements for a CGR. These include that the
Council must;

draw up Terms of Reference (ToR) for the review, specifying the areals
under review and any consequential matters that need to be considered.

consult local government electors for the area under review and any other
person or body (including a local authority) who appears to have an interest
in the review.

have regard to the need to secure that community governance within the
area under review “reflects the identities and interests of the community in
that area, and is effective and convenient”.

take into account any representations received in connection with the
review.

publish recommendations as soon as practicable after making them and
take steps to ensure that those who may be interested in the review are
informed of those recommendations.

Subject to these duties, it is for the Council to decide how to undertake the review.

It is important to note that the two statutory criteria for determining a CGR are set
out in the LGPIH. The LGPIH states (part 4, chapter 3, paragraph 93) that

“The principal council must have regard to the need to secure that
community governance within the area under review —

(a) reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area, and

(b) is effective and convenient.”

ERWG

Page 18 19 July 2016




14 Draft Proposals

141 Assetoutin Annex 2, there were three proposals set out for consultation, all
regarding the boundaries of Kings Hill parish:

Proposal Al — that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and East
Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended to include the area marked Al on
the map at Annex 3.

Proposal A2 —that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and East Malling
& Larkfield parishes be amended such that the area marked A2 on the map
at Annex 3 remain within East Malling & Larkfield parish.

Proposal B — that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
Wateringbury parishes marked B on the map at Annex 3 remain within
Wateringbury.

15 Consultees

151 The following organisations and individuals were sent a written copy of the
proposal and invited to respond:

ERWG

all householders directly affected by the change — (none in this case).

the three parish councils (Kings Hill, Wateringbury, and East Malling &
Larkfield).

local Borough Councillors for the affected wards.
Kent County Council, and local County Councillors.
local political parties.

the Member of Parliament.

the Electoral Commission.

Liberty Property Trust.

Kings Hill Golf Club.

Page 19 19 July 2016



16

161

162

163

164

165

ERWG

Responses to the consultation

During the consultation period, a total of 22 responses were received, including
several on behalf of households (rather than individuals) and a petition comprising
59 signatures. Members should note this level of response, compared to previous
CGRs (Leybourne Chase in 2013, 11 respondents; all parishes in 2008, 17
respondents) particularly given that there are no residential properties contained
within any of the areas under consideration.

A summary of the responses received can be found at Annex 4 and the detailed
responses are included at Annex 5. Members will note that these documents, in
their redacted state, will be published after the conclusion of the Review.

It is a requirement of a CGR to consult. Members are therefore asked to read all
of the responses to the consultation and give them due consideration.

Within the responses received, there were a number of recurring themes, as well
as specific comments Members will need to be aware of. These are outlined
below. For convenience, | have split responses down by the three proposal areas.

Area Al
1) In considering the Draft Proposals prior to the consultation, Members were
advised:

Area Al is currently part of East Malling & Larkfield parish (East Malling
parish ward). This area includes the allotment site, the Kings Hill sports
park and pitches, and land identified through the Kings Hill Phase 3
Masterplan as being allocated as ‘Amenity Green Space’. Therefore this
land is already, or very soon will be, used by residents of the parish of
Kings Hill. 1t is accessible by road via Kings Hill parish, and is designed to
serve the residents of that community. There are no residential properties
in this area, and the only commercial properties are the Sports Park itself.
KHPC have expressed a wish to use this as a facility for the Parish Council
itself in future. | advise that area A1 does meet the two statutory criteria.

Representatives from Wateringbury parish council have expressed concern
that a transfer of land from any parish to Kings Hill should not open up
access routes that would add to traffic and congestion in surrounding

roads. The planning application that formed the basis of the development of
Kings Hill was approved subject to no vehicular access being granted
through Wateringbury or East Malling, and the outcome of the CGR itself
would not affect that. The western end of Teston Road is currently in Kings
Hill, with the remainder in Wateringbury. That situation will not change as
part of this CGR.

Page 20 19 July 2016



ERWG

2 The consultation document stated:

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill
and East Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended to include the area
marked Al on the map within Kings Hill.

3) Of the 22 responses, five did not comment upon this proposal. Of the
remainder, five supported the proposal, one supported it subject to
clarifications, one raised concerns without expressing a final view, and ten
were opposed to it. It is notable that East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council
support this proposal, albeit with some reluctance, as they recognise that
the statutory criteria have been met. Kings Hill Parish Council also support
this proposal.

Number of Notes
respondents
Support the proposal, such 5 Includes East Malling &
that area A1 becomes part of Larkfield Parish Council,
Kings Hill parish and Kings Hill Parish
Council.

Object to this proposal, such 10
that area A1 remains within
East Malling & Larkfield

Support subject to 1
clarifications

Raised concerns but no final 1
view expressed

No comment 5
Total 22
4) In more detail, the objections and concerns are as follows:

()

A number of residents were opposed to the draft proposal for this
area, citing concerns about development that they consider will take
place if the land is labelled as ‘Kings Hill parish’. There is a strength
of feeling amongst residents that the development of Kings Hill
would continue into what is currently green open space, to the
detriment of the local communities.

However, Members should note the two statutory criteria which must
be used to adjudicate in a Community Governance Review: “The
principal council must have regard to the need to secure that
community governance within the area under review — (a) reflects
the identities and interests of the community in that area, and (b) is
effective and convenient.”

Page 21 19 July 2016



ERWG

(ii)

The possible future development of a plot of land is not a material
concern of a CGR. In any case, this land is identified through the
Kings Hill Phase 3 Masterplan as being allocated as ‘Amenity Green
Space’ and not allocated for residential or commercial development.

Whilst residents may have concerns about future development in
their local area, the crux of this part of the CGR is whether the
possible redrawing of the boundary around Area Al will meet the
statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged. Therefore |
recommend that Members note these concerns, but consider that
they of themselves cannot affect the decision about the future
boundary of Kings Hill parish.

Teston Parish Council submitted a detailed response to the
consultation. Members are asked to read this (response 14 in
Annex 5). Their main concern is thus:

We are strongly opposed to more vehicles being released onto
Malling Road and Wateringbury Road via a re-opened Teston Road.
This proposed boundary change must only increase the probability
of such re-opening, as, presumably, Kings Hill Parish would press
for a road link to the east of their Parish, rather than being restricted
to Ashton Way / Malling Road along its western boundary.

As noted above, Members must consider only the statutory criteria
when determining the outcome of a CGR — namely whether the
possible redrawing of the boundary around Area Al will meet the
statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged. The possible
future re-opening of a road, which is opposed by a number of parish
councils and local residents, is not a material concern. In addition,
the revised boundary still leaves a portion of the Teston Road in
East Malling & Larkfield Parish; it would be for the highways
authority, in consultation with TMBC, to determine if a road is to be
reopened not the local parish council; and the access routes to
Kings Hill parish are subject to planning conditions. Therefore |
recommend that Members note these concerns, but consider that
they of themselves cannot affect the decision about the future
boundary of Kings Hill parish.

Teston Parish Council have also raised issues with the consultation
process and the Draft Proposals:

[a] “the Sports Ground is commercial. It is far from restricted to use
by Kings Hill Parish residents...” This is correct. However, the area
includes the allotment site, the Kings Hill sports park and pitches,
and land identified through the Kings Hill Phase 3 Masterplan as

Page 22 19 July 2016



ERWG

being allocated as ‘Amenity Green Space’. It is accessible to
vehicular traffic only via Kings Hill parish.

[b] “While...there are no residential properties within area Al, the
nearby properties potentially most affected by activities at the Sports
Park are in East Malling & Larkfield Parish.” This is also correct.
However, parish boundaries should reflect the identities and
interests of the local community (as per the statutory criteria for the
CGR). Any issues of noise or nuisance emanating from the Sports
Park and affecting residents would be dealt with through the normal
enforcement activities regardless of the parish in which the residents
live. Planning decisions are made by the planning authority, not the
parish councils, and the views of affected residents and concerned
parish councils are considered when determining planning
applications regardless of which side of a parish boundary line they
live.

[c] “We are not aware that consultation has been as legislated”, as
Teston Parish Council were not directly contacted to engage in the
consultation. The parish boundaries under consideration concern
Kings Hill Parish Council and East Malling & Larkfield Parish
Council. Teston Parish Council, in a neighbouring District, does not
share this boundary under review. Therefore they were not identified
as having an interest in the review. However, the consultation
documents were sent to those named in paragraph 1.5, and copies
published on our website where any interested party could view and
download them. Until receiving their response to the consultation,
Teston Parish Council did not contact us to raise any concern or to
ask for further details or engage with Officers regarding this
consultation in any way. | am therefore satisfied that the statutory
consultees were contacted, and that Teston Parish Council, whilst
not deliberately excluded from the initial consultee list, did not
appear to have an interest in the review but nonetheless did have
the opportunity to engage with it, and indeed did so by responding to
the consultation. In my opinion, therefore, the consultation was
conducted as per the requirements of the LGPIH Act 2007.

[d] “This proposal would fail on criterion 4(b) [the statutory criteria
that community governance is effective and convenient]” because
“the closest adjacent residential properties are in East Malling &
Larkfield Parish.” As noted above, the nearest residential properties
are within East Malling & Larkfield. However, those properties are,
and will remain, part of East Malling & Larkfield parish. The
community governance for those properties is not changing, and the
potential movement of a boundary to encompass Area Al will not
affect their governance arrangements. If the Borough Council were
to use the suggestion that parish boundaries should include land

Page 23 19 July 2016



ERWG

(iii)

(iv)

and developments based on the parish of the nearest residential
properties, almost every parish boundary would be redrawn and
revised on a regular basis. | am therefore satisfied that the proposal
does not fail as suggested by Teston parish council.

Wateringbury Parish Council submitted responses to the
consultation (responses 3 and 9 in Annex 5). Their main concern is
thus: “Wateringbury Parish Council is concerned to ensure that any
change or transfer reiterates that the insubstantial gap between the
southern boundary of area A1 and the highway within our parish
boundary (Teston Road) cannot be breached, however inadvertently
by any consequence of such transfer, as the same would nullify the
conditions referred to above to the great concern of Wateringbury
Parish Council for the reasons promulgated at the time the Kings Hill
development was approved.”

As cited above in (i), these are planning matters. The possible future
development of a plot of land is not a material concern of a CGR.

Whilst the parish council may have concerns about future
development in their local area, the crux of this part of the CGR is
whether the possible redrawing of the boundary around Area A1 will
meet the statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged.
Therefore | recommend that Members note these concerns, but
consider that they of themselves cannot affect the decision about the
future boundary of Kings Hill parish. The planning conditions
associated with the development of Kings Hill are not affected or
cancelled by a change in parish boundary.

East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council submitted a response
following a public meeting about the consultation (response 10 in
Annex 5). Within this they expressed the following three points:

[a] “There were some present who felt no change to the long
standing boundary should be made on the grounds no houses were
involved and that where the boundary ran made no difference to
Kings Hill Parish Council’s management of the allotments and sports
pitches and facilities.”

Members are invited to note that the statutory criteria require that the
council has “regard to the need to secure that community
governance within the area under review — (@) reflects the identies
and interests of the community in that area”, and to consider
whether the possible redrawing of the boundary around Area A1 will
meet the statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged.
Given the land is accessed by vehicular traffic only from Kings Hill,
and is used to accommodate the Sports Park and allotments, both

Page 24 19 July 2016



managed by Kings Hill, it would appear that the redrawing of the
boundary will better meet the statutory criteria.

In addition, Members are invited to note that, in response 12 East
Malling & Larkfield Parish Council state “we accept its transfer [of
area A1] to Kings Hill.”

[b] “There was a query raised as to whether the eastern boundary of
Al is correctly confined to the sports area and should not include
any of Corio Farm, which is on the “Call for Sites” map of the Local
Plan Review.”

As noted above, whether a site is included in a possible future
development or not is immaterial to the CGR. However, Corio Farm
is excluded from the proposed area Al. It is accepted that the
boundary line on the consultation map is relatively wide, which may
have led to the question being posed.

[c] “The same applies to the re-developed Heath Farm where it was
queried if the strip of land adjoining forms part of the sports area or
not.” The area highlighted is identified as ‘Amenity Green Space’ in
the area plans and is included in area Al.

(v) East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council submitted a parish council
response (response 12 of Annex 5). In this they state that they
“accept its [Area A1] transfer to Kings Hill.”

5) As noted above, a number of concerns and objections have been raised to
the possible realignment of the boundary as proposed for Area Al.
However, none of those concerns or objections have identified a matter
that is material to a CGR. Therefore, the crux of this part of the CGR is
whether the possible redrawing of the boundary around Area Al will meet
the statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged.

6) On balance, it appears to me that the statutory criteria are better met by
redrawing the boundaries. | therefore recommend that:

[a] Members consider the responses to the consultation; and

[b] Members agree to the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area
Al is transferred to Kings Hill, in the final recommendations.

Page 25

ERWG 19 July 2016



10

166 Area A2

1)

2)

3)

ERWG

In considering the Draft Proposals prior to the consultation, Members were
advised:

Area A2 is land to the north of Area Al. It is owned by Liberty Property
Trust (the developer of Kings Hill). It includes the country park, land
identified through the Kings Hill Phase 3 Masterplan as being allocated as
‘Natural Green Space’, and other undeveloped open space and woodland.
This land is served by footpaths and bridleways, which open it up for use
by both Kings Hill and East Malling residents. There are no residential
properties, nor commercial properties, within this area. KHPC have
expressed that they wish for Area A2 to also be included within the parish
boundary of Kings Hill. However, | do not consider that it meets the
statutory criteria. This is because it is not used solely by Kings Hill
residents and so cannot be considered to “reflect the identities and
interests of the [Kings Hilll community.” Ownership of the land does not in
itself identify a community use, and therefore cannot be considered to be
criteria enough to transfer the land to be included within Kings Hill parish.

If future in-fill development were to take place, along The Heath or
Wateringbury Road, the properties would currently be within East Malling.
They would be part of the East Malling community, neighboured by other
East Malling properties. However, if the land were to move to Kings Hill as
set out, future in-fill developments would be part of Kings Hill parish, which
would not be reflective of their community identity or interests.

The consultation document stated:

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill
and East Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended such that the area
marked A2 on the map below remain within East Malling & Larkfield parish.

Of the 22 responses, three did not comment upon this proposal. Of the
remainder, 18 supported the proposal (either explicitly or through objecting
to any change of the boundary), and one was opposed to it.

Number of Notes
respondents

Support the proposal, such 18
that area A2 remains within

East Malling & Larkfield

Object to this proposal, such 1 Kings Hill Parish Council
that area A2 becomes part of

Kings Hill parish

No comment 3
Total 22
Page 26

19 July 2016



11

4) In more detail, the objections and concerns are as follows:

(1) Kings Hill Parish Council (response 8 of Annex 5) objected to the
Borough Council’s draft proposal. Their comments were:

[a] “This area includes Warren Woods and other land at Heath Farm.
The land at Warren Woods is specifically designed to serve the
residents of Kings Hill and forms part of the Section 106 obligations
of the developer as part of Phase 2 of Kings Hill.”

As noted above, planning conditions and concerns are not material
to a Community Governance Review. As such, the use of Section
106 provision by a developer does not necessitate a change in
parish boundary.

[b] “It is also adjacent to Area A1 and directly accessible from the
Sports Park in Area A1.” It is correct that areas A1 and A2 are
adjacent. However close proximity does not of itself create a
necessity to move parish boundaries. The land in area A2 does not
have vehicular access, but has pedestrian access from both Kings
Hill and East Malling.

5) The points raised in the earlier paper about in-fill properties remain valid.

6) The key guestion for Members to consider in this part of the CGR is
whether the possible redrawing of the boundary around Area A2 will meet
the statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged.

7 On balance, it appears to me that the statutory criteria are better met by
leaving this boundary unchanged. | therefore recommend that:

[a] Members consider the responses to the consultation, both the
supporting arguments in Annex 5 and the objections noted above; and

[b] Members agree to the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area
A2 remains within East Malling & Larkfield.

Page 27

ERWG 19 July 2016



12

16.7 AreaB

ERWG

1)

2)

3)

4)

In considering the Draft Proposals prior to the consultation, Members were
advised:

Area B is currently part of Wateringbury. This area includes part of the
Kings Hill Golf Club. Whilst users of the Golf Club are from a wider area
than Kings Hill alone, it is accessible by road via Kings Hill parish. There
are no residential properties in this area, and the only commercial
properties are the facilities of the Golf Club itself.

However, if future in-fill development were to take place, along Canon Lane
or the eastern edge of Danns Lane, the properties would currently be within
Wateringbury. They would be part of the Wateringbury community,
neighboured by other Wateringbury properties. However, if the land were to
move to Kings Hill as set out, future in-fill developments would be part of
Kings Hill parish, which would not be reflective of their community identity
or interests.

The consultation document stated:

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill
and Wateringbury parishes marked B on the map below remain within
Wateringbury.

Of the 22 responses, four did not comment upon this proposal. Of the
remainder, 17 supported the proposal (either explicitly or through objecting
to any change of the boundary), and one was opposed to it.

Number of Notes
respondents

Support the proposal, such 17
that area A2 remains within
Wateringbury parish

Object to this proposal, such 1 Kings Hill Parish Council
that area A2 becomes part of
Kings Hill parish

No comment 4

Total 22

In more detail, the objections and concerns are as follows:

(i) Kings Hill Parish Council (response 8 of Annex 5) objected to the
Borough Council’s draft proposal. Their comments were:

[a] “This area is a protected open space and therefore is extremely
unlikely to be available to residential development as mentioned.”

Page 28 19 July 2016



13

Whilst large-scale development is unlikely, in-fill development
remains possible. Therefore, the arguments stated above remain
true.

[b] “The Golf Club is only accessible from Kings Hill. It is not
accessible from Wateringbury parish by vehicle at all. Pedestrian
access is also extremely limited and is hard to access from
Wateringbury parish.”

[c] “The current parish boundary cuts right through the Kings Hill
Golf course and cannot be described as ‘effective and convenient’
as it currently stands.” The statutory criteria refer to local
governance being ‘effective and convenient’. Kings Hill Parish
Council does not have a controlling interest in the Golf Course,
which also extends into a third parish not mentioned thus far in the
CGR, and is not concerned with boundaries matching land
ownership of private land per se.

[d] “It is adjacent to Kings Hill residential areas but a significant
distance from the centre of Wateringbury village.” Whilst this is
correct, there are houses immediately abutting the golf course, and
these properties are part of Wateringbury parish. Close proximity
does not of itself create a necessity to move parish boundaries.
There are other areas within the Borough where houses are closer
to a plot of land, whether in use or not, than the parish to which that
land ‘belongs’, but there is no need to move the parish boundaries
until they are equidistant from existing properties as noted above.

[e] “Therefore KHPC believe that Area B meets the statutory criteria
as there are no residential properties in this area and it can only be
accessed through Kings Hill so it would be effective and convenient
to have the whole golf course within the boundary of Kings Hill rather
than just a portion of it. This would ‘reflect the identities and interests
of the community in that area’ as the round trip from Wateringbury is
prohibitively onerous”.

There is no evidence that the only people who use Kings Hill Golf
Course are residents of Kings Hill, and this is highly unlikely. The
Golf Course were invited to respond to the consultation, but no
response was received. Kings Hill Golf Course is currently split
across three parishes, as part of the land is in Mereworth. However,
there has to date been no suggestion to amend the parish boundary
to include that part of the Golf Course within Kings Hill.

The statutory criteria refer to the identities and interests ‘of the
community in that area’. The ‘area’ is the area subject to the review.
As noted, there are no residential properties in Area B so no

Page 29

ERWG 19 July 2016



ERWG

5)

6)

14

identities or interests of residents themselves to consider. Instead,
one must consider the identities and interests of the users of the
Golf Course, and whether the course being wholly within Kings Hill
will have a positive, negative or neutral effect on their identities and
interests. It is worth noting, as other respondents to the consultation
did, that many golf courses cross over local boundaries.

The key question for Members to consider in this part of the CGR is
whether the possible redrawing of the boundary around Area B will meet
the statutory criteria better than leaving them unchanged.

On balance, it appears to me that the statutory criteria are better met by
leaving this boundary unchanged. | therefore recommend that:

[a] Members consider the responses to the consultation, both the
supporting arguments in Annex 5 and the objections noted above; and

[b] Members agree that the boundary in this area remain unchanged such
that Area B remains in Wateringbury parish.

Page 30 19 July 2016



17

171

172

18

181

19

191

ERWG

15

Final Proposal for General Purposes Committee

The responses received to the consultation have been taken into account in
finalising the proposal as set out below. This Final Proposal will be published by
General Purposes Committee and, subject to their approval, will be adopted and
take effect from the May 2019 elections.

Proposal:

The parish boundary between Kings Hill and East Malling & Larkfield
parishes be amended to include the area marked Al on the map below
within Kings Hill.

& ‘Wateringbury Pars $ Crown copyfight 8nd database rights 2015 Ordnance Sume_upéqgﬁnc

In producing this Final Proposal, Members will note that the draft Proposals for
Area A2 and Area B have been endorsed, in that no change to those areas is
proposed.

Legal Implications

The Council is required to keep parish electoral arrangements under review, and
to undertake a CGR to consider and implement any necessary changes.

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

The financial cost of undertaking the CGR will include the costs of publishing
notices and consulting with stakeholders. It is anticipated that these costs can be
met from existing budgets.

Page 31 19 July 2016



16

110 Risk Assessment

110.1 Failing to undertake the review may lead to electoral arrangements that are less
effective and less convenient.

1.10.2 Failure to comply with statutory guidance, or to make decisions contrary to the
statutory criteria, could lead to a formal objection by certain interested parties.

This could lead to a review of the decision-making process and outcome by the

Electoral Commission.

111 Equality Impact Assessment

111.1 The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance
to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

112 Recommendations

1121 Itis recommended that Members:

1) Consider the responses to the consultation.

2 Agree to the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area Al is
transferred to Kings Hill.

3) Agree to the redrawing of the parish boundary such that Area A2 is not
transferred to Kings Hill.

4) Agree that Area B is not transferred to Kings Hill.

5) Agree that the Final Proposal be endorsed (paragraph 1.7) and presented
to the General Purposes Committee for publication and adoption, such that
the boundary be amended from the May 2019 elections.

contact: Richard Beesley
Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

ERWG

Page 32 19 July 2016



TONBRIDGE
ANNEX 1 & MALLING

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council

Community Governance Review 2016 : Terms of Reference A'A

A review of parish electoral arrangements under the

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Introduction

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
(CGR) pursuant to Part 4, Chapter 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007, to consider the parish boundaries between Kings Hill and East Malling & Larkfield, and Kings Hill
and Wateringbury parishes.

Why undertake a Community Governance Review?

A CGR provides an opportunity for principal authorities to review and make changes to community
governance within their area. Such reviews can be undertaken when there have been changes in
population or in reaction to specific, or local, new issues to ensure that the community governance for
the area continues to be effective and convenient and it reflects the identities and interests of the
community.

The government has emphasised that ultimately, recommendations made in a CGR ought to bring
about improved community engagement, more cohesive communities, better local democracy and
result in more effective and convenient delivery of local services.

Government guidance further states that it is good practice to conduct a [full] review at least every 10
— 15 years and keep the area under review in the interim. The most recent similar reviews were;

- Tonbridge and Malling (Parishes) Order 2000, coming into force on 1 April 2002.
- Tonbridge and Malling (Electoral Changes) Order 2001, coming into force 1 May 2003.

- The Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council (Reorganisation of Community Governance) Order 2009,
coming into force 1 April 2010.

- The Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council (Reorganisation of Community Governance) Order 2014,
coming into force 1 April 2015.

The parish of Kings Hill was created in 1999 through The Tonbridge and Malling (Parishes) Order 1999.
Since then the community has grown considerably and new residential, commercial and recreational
facilities have been and continue to be built. The majority of this development has taken place within
the boundary of the parish. However, some recent development has extended beyond the current
Kings Hill parish boundary.

Page 33



KHPC have requested this review of boundaries to ensure the parish boundary reflects the interests
and identities of the local communities. The ongoing development of Kings Hill has, until relatively
recently, meant that clear boundaries of the extent of local development have not been available.
Those boundaries are now clearer, allowing for a more definitive review to take place.

Score of the review

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council has resolved to undertake a CGR to consider whether
governance arrangements for the parish of Kings Hill are:

a) reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and

b) effective and convenient to the community in that area.

In doing so the review is required to take into account:
a) the impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; and

b) the size, population and boundaries of the local community or parish.

Specifically, the review will consider the parish boundaries between Kings Hill and East Malling &
Larkfield, and Kings Hill and Wateringbury parishes.

Who will undertake the community governance review

As the principal authority, the Borough Council are responsible for undertaking any CGR within its
electoral area.

The committee responsible for overseeing this process is the “General Purposes Committee” (GP). The
council’s “Electoral Review Working Group” (ERWG) will conduct the review and make
recommendations to GP for adoption and creation of a Reorganisation of Community Governance
Order.

Page 34



A timetable for the review

A CGR must, by statute, be concluded within a twelve month period from the day on which the review
commences. A CGR commences when the Borough Council publishes its Terms of Reference and it
concludes when the Borough Council publishes the recommendations made in the review.

Action Timetable Outline of action
Terms of Reference (ToR) Start Date Borough Council publishes ToR and notifies stakeholders, clearly
are published defining extent of the review and consequential matters.

2 February 2016

Publish Draft Proposals 2 February 2016 Borough Council publishes Draft Proposals and commences formal
consultation upon them.

Consultation 2 February 2016 Borough Council undertakes a full consultation requesting support for
to 9 May 2016 the Draft Proposals, or alternative proposals.

Final Proposals are During May 2016 Borough Council considers results of consultation and prepares Final

prepared Proposals.

Final Proposals are June 2016 Borough Council (General Purposes Committee) determines Final

determined Proposals

Council publishes the thereafter Borough Council publishes a reorganisation order concerning Parish

reorganisation order matters.

Page 35



PRINCIPLES GUIDING THE REVIEW
Relevant legislation

In undertaking a CGR, the Borough Council will apply the guiding principles as appropriate from the
following legislation and guidance;

e The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

e The Local Government Act 1972

e Guidance on Community Governance Reviews (DCLG/EC)

e Local Government (Parishes and Parish Councils) (England) Regulations 2008 (S12008/625)
e Local Government Finance (New Parishes) Regulations 2008 (S12008/626)

Electorate forecasts for the borough

In considering the electoral arrangements of the parishes stated within these Terms of Reference the
Borough Council is required to consider any change in the number or distribution of the electors which
is likely to occur in the period of five years beginning with the day when the review starts. In the
affected areas there are no registered electors and no residential properties. Electorate forecasting is
therefore not relevant in this review.

Consultation

Before making or publishing Final Proposals, in line with legislative requirements, the Borough Council
will take full account of the views of local people. The Borough Council will comply with legislative
requirements by;

a) consulting local government electors for areas under review;

b) consulting any other person or body (including a local authority) which appears to the principal
council to have an interest in the review;

c) consulting the county council; and

d) taking into account any representations received in connection with the review.

When taking account of written representations the Borough Council is bound to have regard to the
need to secure that community governance within the area under review is;

a) reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and
b) effective and convenient to the community in that area.

In order to ensure that this review is conducted transparently, as soon as practicable the Borough
Council will publish its recommendations and take such steps as it considers sufficient to ensure that
persons who may be interested in the review are informed of the recommendations and the reasons
behind them.

The Borough Council will also notify each consultee and any other persons or bodies who have made
written representations, of the outcome of the review.

Page 36



LOCAL COUNCILS
The value of local councils

The Borough Council believes that local parish and town councils play an important role in terms of
community empowerment at a local level and want to ensure that local governance in the areas
subject to this review continue to be robust, representative and enabled to meet the challenges that
lie before it.

The Parish Charter sets out a series of principles which characterise and underpin working
relationships between the Borough Council and parish/town councils. The Charter recognises the
importance of effective joint working between all tiers of local government including county, borough
and parish and town councils as a fundamental part of local democracy.

Furthermore, it recognises that parish/town councils have a key role to play in representing the views,
promoting the needs, of the borough’s local communities and neighbourhoods and that every
opportunity should be afforded to them to express such views to the Borough Council prior to any
decisions taken which might affect local circumstances

Parish boundaries

The Borough Council considers that ‘natural’ settlements or settlements as they are defined in the
Local Development Framework should not in normal circumstances be partitioned by parish
boundaries.

The Borough Council considers that the boundaries between parishes should where possible either
reflect the ‘no-man’s land’ between communities represented by areas of low population or by
pronounced physical barriers. Pronounced physical barriers might include natural boundaries such as
rivers or man-made features such as railways or roads.

In reaching conclusions on the boundaries between parishes, the Borough Council will take into
account community identity and interests in an area and will consider whether any particular ties or
linkages might be broken by the drawing of particular boundaries. Equally, the Borough Council,
during its consultations will be mindful that proposals which are intended to reflect community
identity and local linkages should be justified in terms of sound and demonstrable evidence of those
identities and linkages.

In any event the Borough Council will endeavour to select boundaries that are, and are likely to
remain, easily identifiable as well as taking into account any local ties which might be broken by the
fixing of any particular boundaries.

The Electoral Commission has suggested that a relevant consideration for the Borough Council when
undertaking a CGR is that the borough wards / county electoral divisions should not spilt an unwarded
parish and that no parish ward should be split by such a boundary.

Page 37



Parish and Town Council level of membership

The Borough Council notes that legally the number of parish councillors for each parish council shall
not be less than five and that there is no maximum number. In the instance of parish wards, any
warded parish must have at least one parish councillor per ward. Furthermore, each area should be
considered on its own merits, having regard to its population, geography and the pattern of
communities.

The government has advised, and the Borough Council agrees, that it is an important democratic
principle that each person’s vote should be of equal weight so far as possible, having regard to other
legitimate competing factors, when it comes to the election of councillors.

Whilst it will not be possible, nor desirable, to create absolute uniformity in councillor representation
at a parish level it is the policy of the Borough Council to provide an equality of representation across
the borough as far as possible.

To ensure that there is an equitable level of representation at parish level on a borough wide basis the
Borough Council has adopted the general policy that;

The number of councillors for each parish council should be at least equal to the levels of
representation specified within the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) Guidelines.

However, whilst the Borough Council is keen to ensure that the allocation of councillors to parish
councils is equitable across the borough, it acknowledges that local circumstances may occasionally
merit variation. Therefore, in exceptional circumstances, or in the case of parish warding, the Borough
Council accepts that it may be appropriate to increase or decrease the allocation of councillors to a
parish council to reflect local circumstances.

Whilst the Borough Council has discretion in this matter and will be mindful to apply the NALC
guidelines it will, wherever possible, fully consider and take into account the wishes of the local area
and the existing levels of representation which have stood the test of time before arriving at a
decision.

Page 38



How to contact us

If you would like to say how you view potential future arrangements under these Terms of Reference
please submit your written comments to:

Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4L.Z

Alternatively, your submission may be emailed to voting@tmbc.gov.uk

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review process please contact:

Richard Beesley
Elections & Special Projects Manager

Telephone 01732 876022
Email voting@tmbc.gov.uk

Publication of Terms of Reference

These Terms of Reference will be published on the Borough Council web site www.tmbc.gov.uk and

will be available for public inspection at the offices in Kings Hill, West Malling and at Tonbridge Castle,
Tonbridge.

Notices advertising this Community Governance Review and the availability of these Terms of
Reference will also be posted within each relevant Parish.

Date of publication

2 February 2016

Page 39


mailto:voting@tmbc.gov.uk
mailto:voting@tmbc.gov.uk
http://www.tmbc.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council

Community Governance Review 2016

A review of parish electoral arrangements under the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

You are invited to comment on these proposals, and/or
suggest alternative options by 9 May 2016.

Community Governance Review 2016

Kings Hill Parish

TONBRIDGE
DRAFT PROPOSALS & MALLING

For consultation
Page 41 A.A




Summary

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council commenced this Community
Governance Review in February 2016. The Borough Council propose to:

1. Amend the parish boundary between the parishes of between Kings
Hill and East Malling & Larkfield parishes.

Consultation

You are invited to comment on these proposals, and/or suggest alternative
options by 9 May 2016. Contact details are at the back of this document.

The Community Governance Review

In February 2016, Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council started a Community
Governance Review' to consider the parish boundaries between Kings Hill and
East Malling & Larkfield, and Kings Hill and Wateringbury parishes.

Why undertake a community governance review (CGR)?

This review is being conducted to ensure that the community governance
within the borough continues to be effective and convenient, and that it
reflects the identities and interests of the local community.

The parish of Kings Hill was created in 1999 through The Tonbridge and Malling
(Parishes) Order 1999. Since then the community has grown considerably and
new residential, commercial and recreational facilities have been and continue
to be built. The majority of this development has taken place within the

! Pursuant to Part 4, Chapter 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in

Health Act 2007. Page 42



boundary of the parish. However, some recent development has extended
beyond the current Kings Hill parish boundary.

KHPC have requested this review of boundaries to ensure the parish boundary
reflects the interests and identities of the local communities. The ongoing
development of Kings Hill has, until relatively recently, meant that clear
boundaries of the extent of local development have not been available. Those
boundaries are now clearer, allowing for a more definitive review to take
place.

Recommendations made through a CGR ought to bring about improved
community engagement, more cohesive communities, better local democracy
and result in more effective and convenient delivery of local services.

Scope of the review

The Borough Council resolved to undertake a CGR to consider whether
governance arrangements within the above parishes are (a) reflective of the
identities and interests of the community in that area; and (b) effective and
convenient to the community in that area.

In doing so the review has taken into account (a) the impact of community
governance arrangements on community cohesion; and (b) the size,
population and boundaries of the local community or parish. Specifically, the
review is considering:

PARISH BOUNDARIES

The parish boundaries between Kings Hill and East Malling &
Larkfield parishes, and between Kings Hill and Wateringbury
parishes.

Page 43



Timetable for the review

The review formally started on 2 February 2016 with the publication of the
Terms of Reference (available from www.tmbc.gov.uk/voting). The draft

proposals in this document are now open to consultation until 9 May 2016,
after which Final Proposals will be prepared and presented to the General
Purposes Committee of the Borough Council in June 2016.

After formal agreement, we will publish a reorganisation Order.

Please note that parish boundaries will not change until after the completion
of the review.

Statutory criteria

It is important to note that the two statutory criteria for determining a
Community Governance Review are set out in the Local Government & Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007, which LGPIH states (part 4, chapter 3,
paragraph 93) that

“The principal council must have regard to the need to secure that community
governance within the area under review —

(a) reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area, and

(b) is effective and convenient.”

Page 44



http://www.tmbc.gov.uk/voting

Parish boundary — Proposal Al

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended to include the area marked Al
on the map below within Kings Hill. This land is already, or very soon will be,

used by residents of the parish of Kings Hill. It is accessible via Kings Hill parish,
and is designed to serve the residents of that community. There are no
residential properties in this area, and the only commercial properties are the
Sports Park itself. KHPC have expressed a wish to use this as a facility for the
Parish Council itself in future. Area A1 does meet the two statutory criteria.

:‘

‘Wateringbury Pari3 $ Crown copyfight and database rights 2018 Ordnanse Surveiw

Page 45



Parish boundary — Proposal A2

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended such that the area marked A2 on
the map below remain within East Malling & Larkfield parish. We have been
asked to consider, and therefore consult, on the possible inclusion of Area A2

within Kings Hill parish. However, we do not consider that it meets the
statutory criteria. This is because it is not used solely by Kings Hill residents and
so cannot be considered to “reflect the identities and interests of the [Kings
Hill] community.” Ownership of the land does not in itself identify a
community use, and therefore cannot be considered to be criteria enough to
transfer the land to be included within Kings Hill parish.

If future in-fill development were to take place, along The Heath or
Wateringbury Road, the properties would currently be within East Malling.
They would be part of the East Malling community, neighboured by other East
Malling properties. However, if the land were to move to Kings Hill, future in-
fill developments would be part of Kings Hill parish, which would not be
reflective of their community identity or interests. The land includes the
country park, land identified through the Kings Hill Phase 3 Masterplan as
being allocated as ‘Natural Green Space’, and other undeveloped open space
and woodland. This land is served by footpaths and bridleways, which open it
up for use by both Kings Hill and East Malling residents.

O B BB B GO0 D
0 £ B 5D D
(0 & O GoD

T D

&0 ol

B g o

o0 o)

20 0

B R 10 i £ 0 )
Lo 08 & ol o)
b B D)
booBo{ 1o
ok A D =

P OO0 R00Re 000D
DOROOOoDo00 e
£ 00 B DO D

N 2RO 8oL o000

Kihgs Hill Parish




Parish boundary — Proposal B

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
Wateringbury parishes marked B on the map below remain within
Wateringbury. This land is part of the Kings Hill Golf Club (much of the rest is
already in Kings Hill parish). Whilst users of the Golf Club are from a wider area
than Kings Hill alone, it is accessible via Kings Hill parish. There are no
residential properties in this area, and the only commercial properties are the
facilities of the Golf Club itself.

However, if future in-fill development were to take place, along Canon Lane or
the eastern edge of Danns Lane, the properties would currently be within
Wateringbury. They would be part of the Wateringbury community,
neighboured by other Wateringbury properties. However, if the land were to
move to Kings Hill as set out, future in-fill developments would be part of Kings
Hill parish, which would not be reflective of their community identity or
interests.

B Kings Hill Parish

2\

B,
P % &
A IR )
beod B 2R
= ¥ e oo g
/ L T
4 g "4d o aa
Seas0 8
o} 4 e T _rreeh
o o e o A e
o 2984894 4¢ 84§ oaleHo g.80Y
o o 298498880 808 QYN °
7 28 Q8" FRs f &R/ !
q ™ & &g/ n G &
E ) 4 E . o %ater@gbury patiske ]
P Al Al 127 AT
P2 g e -
0 B

)
A B S rown-copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Surney 150Q233DD

Page 47




Contact Details

If you would like to comment on the proposals in this document, please submit
your written comments no later than 9™ May 2016 by email to
voting@tmbc.gov.uk. Alternatively your submission may be sent to:

Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4LZ

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review
process please contact:

Richard Beesley
Elections & Special Projects Manager

Telephone 01732 876022
Email voting@tmbc.gov.uk

Page 48


mailto:voting@tmbc.gov.uk
mailto:voting@tmbc.gov.uk

ONBR
MA
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 3

Community Governance Review 2016

;O b
TTH GGG R TTY
2O GO @GO N9
=/ JD
5 Vs Eg
GO PO ETY PO ;
o opooBopsaes
e (O T TTHU T I Py
pocoafgoofi ol kg
QY
' ' ' ' ' | v f Y
el
TQ DO CET Y : &
/ = NS
i GGG TEFPS F I A
SRR TR TSI SN
g ST T SR iﬁ
: %R
B <
D GRS NG @ K

A
IR R R R R 4 »//o
N

ISR R R e R e

.gov.uk

www.tmbc

[ & G S

PG T
b~ FITIIFIIFGD
GGGTTGIGGIFSTT GG SR
wQQQQQQQQ@@QQQQ@@Q/ a
GGG GIPTRG GG T TF O GGG g

~Ah I TTCAI VI G PP DO ] ‘
P T f VTP GGITRQIFIG T 3S, Non Y #
P I FIFIDQYITFFIFIIIFPFIFTTTS TV =
PIP GG FIIIRIGGGY TG T i =
P IR FFTIIFIINQYIGPB GGG T Y i

~

F O MGG T O XD G et Ms\ L =
GO TANQS TTS - )
YOG/ N d
G O PG G NG ¢ TG g
iRSRR s LRy Fo e f
ISR SRR TTTOL [TTTY,
Qoo BEIGGYR TG

N A R R R e TA B R
& G @Iy

o/

0

=

-

AT G TGS
NG GG Y
< & Iy ~ </ N

Kings Hill Parish
O

>~

ST G
AN B ol o o o NG Ja
whooakad 7,
~ad o oafod ’ 4
TS 0 0 9 N =
G g |

)

BN
[ A

= =

Te] SRR R R R R R R X R N7 B R R e R R R R el A P/ | s
FPGTERG GGG N GGG OO Y ) =

G0

SR &)
tabase rights 2015 Ordnarfjce Survey 100023300

[
&
&
&
&

dat

TP RTY
R R LR
b ooobooD
Shocogoasd
‘ AR Ry
N = | pecdpegof
= GG I
T T T I
SRR o

} O @G

W,

B

e
— & RS o
N T O el e

kG B G g o)
s [0 G o )
R AT NG

= QQFQM q
= oo

loaa) ., [=

Wateringbufy Parish

=5

) %

T



rbxe
Typewritten Text
Annex 3

rbxe_1
Typewritten Text

rbxe_2
Typewritten Text


This page is intentionally left blank



Stakeholder

Summary

Area Al

Area A2

ANNEX 4

1 |2/2/16 Clir Balfour Agree with Borough Council proposals. Support proposals Support proposals | Support proposals
2 | 3/2/16 Electoral No comments. Deferred to LGBCE. N/a N/a N/a
Commission
3 |2/3/16 Wateringbury Support Borough Council proposal regarding N/a N/a Support proposals
Parish Council Area B, remaining in Wateringbury.
4 | 15/3/16 | Local residents Oppose area A2 being included in Kings Hill N/a Support proposals | N/a
Middle Mill Road | (thereby supporting the Borough Council
East Malling proposal for that area). Objecting as they do
not wish the land to be developed in future.
5 |16/3/16 | Local resident Object to all proposed amendments to the Object Support proposals | Support proposals
parish boundary (thus supporting the Borough
Council’s proposal for areas A2 and B): “There
is clearly a bias towards new build develops
and towns making life easy for governing
;DU bodies. However, there is an equally if not
Q greater bias within local communities towards
@ maintaining our green space, green fields and
ol .
= countryside from developments and new
towns which damage the heritage and
recreational space already used by the public
and community.”
6 |9/4/16 Local resident Object to all proposed amendments to the Object Support proposals | Support proposals

parish boundary: “There are no guarantees
that Kings Hill will not subsequently put
buildings within the area A2 as they have done
in Al and then put in a further application to
move the boundary because they are
legitimately using the area, as they have done
with area Al. This gradual creep of Kings Hill
which is already impinging on surrounding
local communities and is already causing
problems with traffic and infrastructure needs
to be firmly stopped as we will otherwise lose




Ref#t Date

Stakeholder

Summary

our community to the developers.”

Area Al

Area A2

ANNEX 4

The Heath, East
Malling

particularly areas A2 and B (thus supporting
the Borough Council proposals for these areas.

7 | 13/4/16 | Tonbridge & Support Borough Council proposals for Area A1 | Support proposals Support proposals N/a
Malling Labour and Area A2, with no views on Area B.
Party
8 | 15/4/16 | Kings Hill Parish Support Borough Council proposal for Area Al. | Support proposals Object Object
Council Do not support proposal for Area A2, on the
basis that it is “designed to serve the residents
of Kings Hill and forms part of the Section 106
obligations of the developer as part of Phase 2
of Kings Hill” and is “directly accessible from
the Sports Park”.
Do not support the proposal for Area B, on the
basis that the Golf Club is accessible from Kings
U Hill only, the parish boundary cuts through the
8 site, and it is adjacent to the residential areas
fD of Kings Hill.
K;b 16/4/16 | Wateringbury Support Borough Council proposal for Area B. Concerns raised N/a Support proposals
Parish Council Concerns raised regarding Area Al to ensure
development does not take place that could
lead to breach of planning conditions and the
opening of Teston Road to vehicular access to
Kings Hill.
10 | 13/4/16 | East Malling & Support the Borough Council proposal for Area | Support proposals Support proposals N/a
Larkfield Parish A1, subject to clarification on the revised subject to
Council, on behalf | boundary not including Corio Farm or Heath clarification on
of residents at a Farm. Support the Borough Council proposal boundary
public meeting for Area A2.
and petition from
residents
11 | 27/4/16 | Local residents Object to realignment of parish boundaries, No comments Support proposals | Support proposals




ANNEX 4

Date ‘ Stakeholder Summary Area Al Area A2
12 | 3/5/16 East Malling & Support the Borough Council proposal for Area | Support proposals Support proposals | Support proposals
Larkfield Parish B. Accept transfer of Area Al to Kings Hill (thus
Council supporting the Borough Council proposal).
Support the Borough Council proposal for area
A2, retaining this area in East Malling.
13 | 4/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
Garner Drive, East | Hill, on the basis that they do not support
Malling development and wish to maintain green
space.
14 | 4/5/16 Teston Parish Object to proposal to transfer land to Kings Hill | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
Council on the basis of potential increased traffic via a
re-opened Teston Road, which they consider
likely if boundary changes take place. Concerns
raised about the consultation process.
15 | 5/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
;DU The Rocks Road, Hill, on the basis that they do not support
L(% East Malling development and wish to maintain green
. space.
(26 3/5/16 Tonbridge & Accept transfer of Area A1l to Kings Hill (thus Support proposals Support proposals | Support proposals
Malling Liberal supporting the Borough Council proposal).
Democrats Support the Borough Council proposals for
Areas A2 and B.
17 | 8/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
Hill, on the basis that they do not support
development and wish to maintain green
space.
18 | 8/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
Hill, on the basis that they do not support
development and wish to maintain green
space.
19 | 8/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals

The Rocks Road,
East Malling

Hill, on the basis that they do not support
development and wish to maintain green




Stakeholder

Summary

space and the separate identities of the
current communities.

Area Al

Area A2

ANNEX 4

20 | 6/5/16 Local resident Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals
Rocks Close, East | Hill, on the basis that they do not support
Malling development and wish to maintain green
space.
21 | 9/5/16 Local resident Object to realignment of parish boundaries, No comments Support proposals | Support proposals
The Heath, East particularly areas A2 and B (thus supporting
Malling the Borough Council proposals for these areas.
22 | 23/4/16 | Local residents Object to proposals that transfer land to Kings | Object Support proposals | Support proposals

Lavenders Road,
West Malling

Hill, on the basis that they do not support
development and wish to maintain green
space.

7§ abed

C — note Golf Course also goes into MEREWORTH parish



Annex 5

Response 1
Richard Beesley
From: voting <voting@tmbc.gov.uk>
Sent: 03 February 2016 09:46
To: Richard Beesley
Subject: Fwd: Re: Community Governance Review (Kings Hill Parish)

>>> Matthew Balfour 02/02/2016 16:59 >>>
Dear Richard

[ agree!

Regards - Matthew

>>> voting 02/02/16 1:46 PM >>>
Dear colleague

I am writing to advise you that Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council have commenced a review of parish electoral
arrangements. This review, known as a Community Governance Review, has been requested by Kings Hill Parish
Council due to recent and ongoing development that has extended beyond the current Kings Hill parish boundary.

Following informal discussions with representatives from the three potentially affected parish councils, Members of
Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council have met and agreed (through General Purposes last night) to undertake this
formal review. The enclosed booklet provides more details. In so doing, they have identified three distinct
geographical areas (labelled as Al, A2 and B in the attached booklet) and made draft recommendations concerning
each of these.

A formal consultation period has now commenced, ending on 9 May 2016. Local parish, Borough, County and
Parliamentary representatives for the area concerned have been contacted and supplied with a copy of the attached
booklet, as have a number of other statutory consultees.

Before the Borough Council arrives at a final decision about future arrangements, we want to give you the
opportunity to put forward your views so that we can take them into account. We would welcome your written views
by Monday 9 May 2016. Our contact details can be found at the back of the booklet. The Borough Council (via the
Electoral Review Working Group and General Purposes) will consider all comments received before making a
decision about future arrangements. If you have any questions about this review please contact me.

We welcome your comments whether you are in support of the recommendations or opposed to them. However, it
would be useful if you could give your reasons for or against when you contact us. In particular, if you do not agree
with any aspect of the draft recommendations, it would be very useful if you are able to suggest a suitable
alternative, noting the statutory criteria below:

"The principal council must have regard to the need to secure that community governance within the area under
review -

(a) reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area, and

(b) is effective and convenient."

Please note that we will not be making any changes to the parish electoral arrangements until the review is
complete. Any changes that are made will, subject to agreement by other stakeholders, be changed with effect from

Page 55


rbxe_3
Typewritten Text
Annex 5

rbxe_4
Typewritten Text

rbxe_5
Typewritten Text

rbxe_6
Typewritten Text
Response 1


the next scheduled parish elections in 2019.
Thank you for taking the time to read this, I look forward to receiving your views.
Kind regards

Richard

Richard Beesley BSc(Hons) AEA(Cert)
Elections & Special Projects Manager, and
Deputy Returning Officer
Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council
Have you tried contacting us at www.tmbc.gov.uk/voting <http://www.tmbc.gov.uk/voting> ?

Page 56



Response 2

Richard Beesley

From: _@electoraIcommission.org.uk>
Sent: 03 February 2016 16:46

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: RE: Community Governance Review (Kings Hill Parish)
Hi Richard

Thanks for your email. Given that the Boundary Committee, which was a statutory Committee of
the Electoral Commission, separated from us several years ago, you should make contact with
them directly on the subject of your review. They are now known as the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) . Here are their contact detalils:

http://www.lgbce.org.uk/about-us/contact-us

| hope that this make senses and guides you sufficiently!

Best wishes

Elizabeth Gorst

Regional Liaison Officer, South West
The Electoral Commission

South West of England Team

Advice and guidance line: 0333 103 1928
Advice and guidance email: infoengland@electoralcommission.org.uk

Direct Dial:

Fax: 020 7271 0505
www.electoralcommission.org.uk
www.aboutmyvote.co.uk

YouR vorE waTTEes |
Ea X

You can now register to vote online

From: Richard Beeslcy [

Sent: 02 February 2016 13:30
To: infoengland
Subject: Community Governance Review (Kings Hill Parish)

Hello EC

Page 57


rbxe_7
Typewritten Text
Response 2


We have today launched a consultation on proposed boundary changes for Kings Hill parish. As a statutory
consultee, please find attached the consultation booklet and covering letter.

Kind regards

Richard

Richard Beesley Bsc(Hons) AEA(Cert)

Elections & Special Projects Manager, and
Deputy Returning Officer

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council

TOMBRIDGE
& MALLING

ARA Have you tried contacting us at Www.tmbc.gov.uk/voting ?

Have you tried contacting us at www.tmbc.gov.uk/do-it-online ?

This e-mail may contain information which is sensitive, confidential, or protectively marked up to OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE level and should be
handled accordingly. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail or any part of it, please inform the sender immediately on receipt and do not
copy it or disclose the contents to any other person. All e-mail traffic may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant
legislation.

Page 58



Response 3

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 02 March 2016 10:38

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Community Governance Review 2016
For you.

Carol

From: Susan Cockburn

Sent: 02 March 2016 09:50

To: voting; voting@tmbc.gov.uk voting

Subject: Community Governance Review 2016

Good Morning

My Council refers to Richard Beesley's letter of the 2nd February with accompanying booklet.

They welcome and support the decision that the Parish Boundary - Proposal B remain within
Wateringbury

Thank you
Regards

Mrs Susan Cockburn
Clerk to Wateringbury Parish Council

Page 59


rbxe_8
Typewritten Text
Response 3


Page 60



Response 4

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 15 March 2016 09:02

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Change of Parish Boundaries

From: Vivienne Meheux

Sent: 15 March 2016 06:26

To: voting

Subject: Change of Parish Boundaries

We are opposed to A2 being included as part of Kings Hill Parish Council. There is no need as this land is a country
park, undeveloped open space and woodland in East Malling and Larkfield and can be enjoyed by all who use it.

We do not want this land built on by Liberty in future years. Joining Kings Hill and East Malling as one!!!
Regards

Middle Mill Rd
East Malling

ME19 6PR

Sent from my iPad

Page 61


rbxe_9
Typewritten Text
Response 4


Page 62



Response 5

Richard Beesley

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

voting

16 March 2016 09:31

Richard Beesley

FW: **Richard Beesley** Parish Boundaries - proposed Amendment to the parish
boundary between the parishes between Kings Hill - East Malling & Larkfield
Parishes

From: Rob Wade
Sent: 16 March 2016 09:20

To: voting

Subject: Fwd: **Richard Beesley** Parish Boundaries - proposed Amendment to the parish boundary between the
parishes between Kings Hill - East Malling & Larkfield Parishes

FAOQ: Richard Beesley

I write to formally communicate my objection to the proposed amendments to
the parish boundary between the parishes Kings Hill - East Malling &
Larkfield Parishes (see drawing below)

There is no pressing justification that warrants the movement of the parish
boundaries as identified and proposed by The Kings Hill Master Plan.

There are many many examples of cross parish boundary land lines/activity
crossovers where residents and users from either parish are interlinked and
overlap! Golf courses and playing fields for example.

There is clearly a bias towards new build develops and towns making life easy
for governing bodies. However, there is an equally if not greater bias within
local communities towards maintaining our green space, green fields and
countryside from developments and new towns which damage the heritage
and recreational space already used by the public and community.

Please take this as my formal objection to any proposals to change or alter the
parish boundary as identified below.

Please contact me directly on ||l if you wish to discuss further.

Robert Wade

Page 63


rbxe_10
Typewritten Text
Response 5


00Z 19V Y3[E3H U1 JUBLIBAJOAU] JljgNd PUE JUWU

Page 64



Response 6

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 11 April 2016 09:52

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Proposed Extension of KHPC boundary

From: Viv Tanna

Sent: 09 April 2016 13:23

To: voting; voting@tmbc.gov.uk voting
Subject: Proposed Extension of KHPC boundary

Dear Sir/Madam

| am a resident of The Heath and would like to object to the proposed extension of the boundary of KHPC covering
the areas Al and A2 and B. | agree with the proposals put forward by TMBC in refusing the application covered by
the area A2 in that residents along the Heath have always been a part of East Malling community and have no
connection with Kings Hill in any shape or form and area B as these two areas do not meet the required criteria for
transfer.

Whilst | can see the logic of allowing Area Al to be included in the parish of Kings Hill as the current boundaries
stand, | am concerned that over time, with the possibility of land to the west of A2 (Broadwater Farm) being moved
into Kings Hill , because it has been labelled as potential development land, that eventually it would appear logical
to also include the area A2 as it lies between area Al and Broadwater. | note that in the Local Development Plan the
area of Broadwater Farm is already being listed as Kings Hill, which is incorrect as it has always been known as
Broadwater Farm and has been formally marked as such since the very first ordnance survey was carried out, so | do
not know by what authority its name has been changed. Perhaps someone at TMBC could enlighten me on this
point.

There are no guarantees that Kings Hill will not subsequently put buildings within the area A2 as they have done in
Al and then put in a further application to move the boundary because they are legitimately using the area, as they
have done with area Al. This gradual creep of Kings Hill which is already impinging on surrounding local
communities and is already causing problems with traffic and infrastructure needs to be firmly stopped as we will
otherwise lose our community to the developers.

Yours faithfully

Vivienne Tanna

Page 65


rbxe_11
Typewritten Text
Response 6


Page 66



Response 7

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 12 April 2016 13:36

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Review of Parish electoral arrangements: Kings Hill; East Malling and Larkfield

From: Douglas Ramsay

Sent: 12 April 2016 12:44

To: voting; voting@tmbc.gov.uk voting

Subject: Review of Parish electoral arrangements: Kings Hill; East Malling and Larkfield

Dear Julie

Please accept the following as the views of Tonbridge and Malling Labour Party on the proposals.

We support Proposal Al on the grounds that the land proposed to transfer from E.Malling & Larkfield
Parish to Kings Hill Parish is already in use by residents of Kings Hill.

We support Proposal A2. We agree that A2 area should remain in E.Malling & Larkfield Parish since it is
not solely used by Kings Hill and any further infilling development would continue to link the area with
East Malling village.

We did not have any views on Proposal B.

Please could you acknowledge receipt of this email.

Regards

Douglas Ramsaty

Secretary
Tonbridge and Malling CLP

Page 67


rbxe_12
Typewritten Text
Response 7


Page 68



Response 8

$*Xj Kings Hill Parish Council

Kings Hill Community Centre, 70 Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4LG
DU Dhone: 01732-870382 Website: www.kingshillparish.gov.uk

Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

Kent

ME19 4LZ

15 April 2016

Dear Ms Beilby

Kings Hill Parish Council (KHPC) has considered the Community
Governance Review draft proposals to amend the Kings Hill parish
boundary and have the following comments:

1. Area A1 - KHPC are pleased that this area is included in the draft
proposal

2. Area A2 - KHPC are disappointed that this area has not been
recommended for inclusion into the parish of Kings Hill.

a. This area includes Warren Woods and other land at Heath
Farm. The land at Warren Woods is specifically designed to
serve the residents of Kings Hill and forms part of the Section
106 obligations of the developer as part of Phase 2 of Kings
Hill.

b. It is also adjacent to Area Al and directly accessible from the
Sports Park in Area Al.

c. Therefore KHPC believe that Area A2 meets the criteria on
exactly the same basis as Area A1, namely that there are no
residential properties in this area and it is designed to serve
the residents of Kings Hill.

3. Area B - KHPC are similarly disappointed that Area B has not been
recommended for inclusion into the parish of Kings Hill.

a. This area is a protected open space (as identified in the TMBC
Open Space Strategy 2009) and therefore is extremely

Page 69


rbxe_13
Typewritten Text
Response 8


unlikely to be available to residential development as
mentioned.

b. The Golf Club is only accessible from Kings Hill. It is not
accessible from Wateringbury parish by vehicle at all.
Pedestrian access is also extremely limited and is hard to
access from Wateringbury parish.

c. The current parish boundary cuts right through the Kings Hill
Golf course and cannot be described as “effective and
convenient” as it currently stands.

d. It is adjacent to Kings Hill residential areas but a significant
distance from the centre of Wateringbury village.

e. Therefore KHPC believe that Area B meets the statutory
criteria as there are no residential properties in this area and
it can only be accessed through Kings Hill so it would be
effective and convenient to have the whole golf course within
the boundary of Kings Hill rather than just a portion of it.
This would “reflect the identities and interests of the
community in that area” as the round trip for Wateringbury
residents is prohibitively onerous.

KHPC looks forward to receiving confirmation of the final decision taken
by the Borough Council.

Yours sincerely

Helen Munro
Chief Executive Officer
On behalf of Kings Hill Parish Council

Page 70



Response 9

WATERINGBURY PARISH COUNCIL

Clerk to the Council - Mrs Susan J Cockburn
I | \Vateringbury Maidstone Kent ME18 5LA
Tel: 01627 cmail: clerk@wateringburypc.org.uk
www.wateringburypc.kentparishes.gov.uk

15" April 2016

Ms Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent ME19 4LZ

Dear Ms Beilby

Community Governance Review 2016
Wateringbury Parish and East Malling & Larkfield Parish

Wateringbury Parish Council were pleased that the consultation draft of the proposals
appeared to respect and reinforce the long standing wishes of the community as recently
confirmed by Steve Humphrey of Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council governing access
between the emerged Kings Hill development(s) and the Wateringbury parish (conditions
33 & 34 as the planning agreement between Kent County Council, Tonbridge & Malling
Borough Council and Rouse Kent and the planning agreement re permission
TM/10/02234/FL) The meeting between members of the Parish Council and Richard
Beesley, the Special Works Projects Officer, appeared to cement the wishes of
Wateringbury Parish Council by not proposing changes to Area B. Wateringbury Parish
Council strongly supports no change to this proposal

Of concern are the proposed changes to area Al as far as the detail of the change to the
southern boundary thereof where it abuts part of the northern established Wateringbury
boundary. Wateringbury Parish Council is concerned to ensure that any change or transfer
reiterates that the insubstantial gap between the southern boundary of area Al and the
highway within our parish boundary (Teston Road) cannot be breached, however
inadvertently by any consequence of such transfer, as the same would nullify the
conditions referred to above to the great concern of Wateringbury Parish Council for the
reasons promulgated at the time the Kings Hill development was approved.

Cont/- Page 71


mailto:clerk@wateringburypc.org.uk
http://www.wateringburypc.kentparishes.gov.uk/
rbxe_14
Typewritten Text
Response 9


We accordingly ask that any change considered or adopted to the parish boundary Al
ensure that our concerns as outlined above are taken fully into account. Wateringbury
Parish Council also supports all comments made by Teston Parish Council

Thank you

Yours sincerely

Susan J Cockburn (Mrs)
Clerk to Wateringbury Parish Council

cc All Parish Councillors

Cllr Simon Jessel

Clir Matthew Balfour

Richard Beesley

Teston Parish Council

East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council

Councillors: M A Cayga@ﬁaﬁgan) R F Tripp CR M Talbert
D T Marks M A Wells Mrs L Simons Mrs C Moreland D Stones ] R Evans



Response 10

East Malling & Larkfield
Parish Council

' T Church Farm, 188 New Hythe Lane, Larkfield, kent ME20 6ST
Tel: 01732 844 546

Fax: 01732 875 857 Email: office@emandlpc.co.uk Website: emandIpe.co.uk
Clerk to the Council: Mrs Val Severn

julie Beilby

13" April 2016
Chief Executive

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council o e %
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive
Kings Hill

West Malling
Kent. ME19 4L7

e

B
et
2
e

. =3
[
£
T

Dear Julie

Community Governance Review
Kings Hill/East Malling Boundary

| refer to this process and the leafiet setting out draft proposals for consideration.

We have contacted Kings Hill Parish Council to see if any agreement was possible between
the two parishes but so far a reply has not been received.

In the meantime the Parish Council did hold a well attended Public Meeting on 14™ March
2016 when this item was discussed and copies of your draft proposals were handed out.

Some residents wanted to express their own views and email or write in themselves.

There were some present who felt no change to the long standing boundary should be made
on the grounds no houses were involved and that where the boundary ran made no difference to
Kings Hill Parish Council’s management of the aliotments and sports pitches and facilities.

There was however no one at the meeting who spoke in favour of transferring Area 2 to
Kings Hill and especially those with houses fronting onto Wateringbury Reoad and The Heath, East
Malling.

There was a query raised as to whether the eastern boundary of Al is correctly confined to
the sports area and should not include any of Corio Farm, which is on the “Call for Sites” map of the
Locan Plan Review. It was felt if houses were built there access would be off Wateringbury Road and

any houses should be in East Malling. Perhaps this could be checked on a larger scale map. We
think it is excluded and would remain in this Parish?

The same applies to the re-developed Heath Farm where it was queried if the strip of land
adjoining forms part of the sports area or not. This query is coloured pink on the attached plan.

it was promised the above 2 queries would be made.

Page 73



rbxe_15
Typewritten Text
Response 10


It was indicated the Parish Council was inclined to agree to the transfer of Area Al subject to
the above queries, and on the basis of the legal position set out in the draft proposals booklet.

On this basis those present who wished, signed the attached petition which it was also
promised we would submit.

The Parish Council will submit its own detailed response shortly but in the meantime please
acknowledge receipt of this fetter and petition.

Yours sincerely

{Mrs.) Val Severn
Clerk to the Council

Enc.

Page 74



To: Chief Executive
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
West Malling
Kent ME19 4.2

PETITION

We the undersigned, residents of East Malling, OBJECT to the
transfer of Area A2 on the Borough Council’s community Governance
Review 2016 booklet from East Malling to Kings Hill.

We consider this area of rural fand, including Warren Wood Nature
Park, and its public footpath connections to The Heath form part of
East Malling and should remain within the Parish.

i

NAME ADDRESS SIGNATURE

\J@a&%lﬁﬁ Woipe] S, HETEAP
Q{}?KD w6 # ‘¢

UOAN HolaUACA .T‘l(% CMA\&&, EJ\S(MM,LAMO\”M(’:@(,AH

J CANA Ko & .Wé&mgf #\a{z%m

- BACCAADDTS MESLDE

Fox
,ﬂ///gg -//60/{ L0 EAE) TR 40/ A0 o
G .meS 728 AR L
A coovis  [RVocks cLce
@ V\LOQ < (Zo)cug o se
T AcpeE-C Bipchanpg B,
= Vo WIBDEE T~ Q)

M imer  EMBRERE VL



NAME ADDRESS SIGNATURE

VQUL t)o,\/fj .‘—’ILI, ST P Mﬁct 66[/
/Jmﬂ;% Srstiapn - o Coloct_ | ITEIY ExE

YVo e Hesc oo &AL

%m Hvsou;:( -rfww,QC,u?z}’
oy EACTM PLLING
jr2el shewis  lleeces  poe

=S VY.STU
T eamct. VS GUL G 7As

LUl J TS
b 86 L
M QMMEZL '-5mﬁ€z~9<—. € el

; ‘ - 1! "_ fe fe

STEVE. CHUECH
CLMLE ~WE G AL

M gopwnd
AL SO AL
Micine. Mavcee DS Cacls

e —— %mﬁ-

J

Slethen) o ey

Aef_&”@w{) / ety y A
AN BAUVNRCR -hv‘\l;/)@fli(s YoM | Gad- Ma\w\g

- 5 Page 76
D KLounT . Toodnotokery b M@ bH<




NAME ADDRESS SIGNATURE

faBfIT WpOL W St bod iy
Zoon Leynowns  [cavec sweast ERT e
‘/{\d rKNNE) /[);CfJN"f\’ - 7/7'06 f’&a"rﬁ—{, EP:SF '"M’LUN'C/

- bwspiusren K1)

1219 0H U
- Lroctwalse 200

CEST WAL g

Strow] SLuTER

ﬂ&bp{uﬁ /’{W (‘“

y =y
\i Newes B i 0
“TepehcE DOBSTN ME bf £

j'dfv\b glm? - Well ¢4

MELlg 6
K Teaeal cle e d p
Akcia {c@zsr—\ﬁom B S
Hewq ¢ap

Joonn ScorT R well S

LRI B
MEq. SN -

7008 el B Libons lase
Lciat ﬁ?ca//éﬂ/

Mere LES

' I CRD |
prreet Wzt [

98t il RY |
C, ffv ﬁé_a ccx/& -/é, M»Bé@ﬁzg_ -




NAME ADDRESS SIGNATURE

HIG H ST _

Recry Coccias

AW AN . e
gz ML - SA T s LAY
/ ’ D ST TSN
Sy T
Pt Mess -H G ST

o e G Yo (L Y

CRLGADER S AL
PP T PN LAl
NMANAEEE e W

PN DS A S oy U d

Sa{frja I /“/(ﬁ{u’vt’;f “ - f‘ g '5“}’;{

J

zw:fd/‘“ VVEA{;/! - fT _

Ji’é/{/‘ e Y R C

Tetoe whovcge [ e
EAA T MMAANG
KT Mg (3w

T Ane 2T I I
A HELA S s G

NICOLA JiASTER S

ANSTI NG
W00 ER




4
H

NAME ADDRESS SIGNATURE

. . | 7 Lioes DRWE
m‘ éé&d%ﬁg - CLaze vlosD DR

Page 79



Parish boundary — Proposal A2

The Borough Council proposes that the parish boundary between Kings Hill and
East Malling & Larkfield parishes be amended such that the area marked A2 on
" the map below remain within_East Malling & Larkfield parish. We have been
asked to consider, and therefore consult, on the possible inclusion of Area A2
within Kings Hill parish. However, we do not consider that it meets the
statutory criteria. This is because it is not used solely by Kings Hill residents and
so cannot be considered to “reflect the identities and Interests of the [Kings
Hilll community.” Ownership of the land does not in itself identify a
community use, and therefore cannot be considered to be criteria enough to
transfer the land to be included within Kings Hill parish.

If future In-fill development were to take place, along The Heath or
Wateringbury Road, the properties would currently be within East Malling.
They would be part of the East Malling community, neighboured by other East
Malling properties, However, if the land were to move to Kings Hill, future in-
fill developments would be part of Kings Hill parish, which would not be
reflective of their community identity or interests. The land Includes the
country park, land identified through the Kings Hill Phase 3 Masterpian as
being allocated as ‘Natural Green Space’, and other undeveloped open space
and woodland. This land Is served by footpaths and bridleways, which open it
* up for use by both Kings Hill and East Malling residents.

2 AT

T sz//’Js/ 7

: % A e RS
< v

e R

,;//.

S\O\D\?kj aven

Page 80




Response 11

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 27 April 2016 14:19

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Community Governance Review 2016 - Parish Boundaries - East Malling and

Larkfield / Wateringbury / Kings Hill

From: Mike Barlow

Sent: 27 April 2016 14:18

To: voting

Cc:_ office@emandlpc.co.uk

Subject: Community Governance Review 2016 - Parish Boundaries - East Malling and Larkfield / Wateringbury /
Kings Hill

Dear Ms Beilby,

We strongly object to the realignment of the parish boundaries as proposed by Kings Hill Parish Council, most
particularly as depicted bordering areas A2 and B in the plans which accompany the Community Governance Review
2016 consultation.

The fact that a change in parish boundaries has been proposed suggests that Kings Hill Parish Council has plans to
change the way in which the underlying land is managed and used. This is neither welcome nor desirable.

It is important to preserve the separate identities and residential environments offered by urban Kings Hill and the
more rural surrounding villages. Doing so gives people a choice of housing and community type in which to live, in
line with Government policy. Constancy in management and usage of the land adjoining the Kings Hill development
is highly beneficial in achieving this urban/rural balance and is thus greatly valued.

It should be remembered that the parish boundaries as they currently exist have been accepted by all residents moving
into the area including those living in Kings Hill. There has never been any public expectation that the boundaries
would be amended or that the management of and use to which the land shown in areas A2 and B would be changed.

To preserve the important residential environmental balance, therefore, it is essential that the parish boundaries, as
they relate to areas A2 and B in particular, remain as they are. In this case, preserving the status quo will best facilitate
the broader needs of existing and future local residents by preserving the choices of housing and locale available to
them.

Mike and Sue Barlow

[l The Heath East Malling ME19 6JL

Page 81


rbxe_16
Typewritten Text
Response 11


Page 82



Response 12

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 03 May 2016 11:39

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Community Governance Review 2016 - Kings Hill/East Malling and

Wateringbury Boundaries

From: EM&L Parish Council Valerie Severn_

Sent: 03 May 2016 10:34

To: voting; voting@tmbc.gov.uk voting

Cc

Subject: Community Governance Review 2016 - Kings Hill/East Malling and Wateringbury Boundaries

Hi

| refer to the Consultation document issued in this matter setting out the draft proposals by the Borough
Council in response to a request to change the Parish boundaries by Kings Hill Parish Council.

| also refer to the Petition we have submitted signed by local residents at a public meeting we held.
Also to the comments submitted by Wateringbury and Teston Parish Councils.

The Parish Council is aware from the public meeting that some residents feel the boundaries should
remain unchanged as they represent a long standing historic feature.

There is also a strong concern that incorporating additional land within Kings Hill could pave the way for its
future development and expansion.

There is also a fear that Teston Road from its junction at The North Pole Public House could be opened up
for public vehicular traffic which since the inception of the Kings Hill Development has been ruled out.

The Parish Council understands these fears and also the case for keeping long standing boundaries
particularly as in this case there are no properties involved such as where a new development is bisected
by a Parish boundary.

The Council however, has looked to the terms of the Statutory criteria set out in the consultation and is
responding on that basis.

As far as Area B, being part of Kings Hill Golf Course, is concerned we can see no case for transferring the
land from Wateringbury to Kings Hill. As recorded there no properties involved; the course is not owned
or managed by Kings Hill Parish Council; and we agree the statutory criteria have not been met.

Indeed there are many golf courses which are crossed by parish boundaries and for example the Cobtree
Golf Course area is partly in Aylesford and partly in Boxley so is crossed by a Borough boundary too.

This Parish therefore supports the Borough's draft proposal that Area B should remain within
Wateringbury Parish.

Page 83


rbxe_17
Typewritten Text
Response 12


Turning to Areas Al and A2 currently within this Parish, these together from what was Heath Farm, East
Malling.

The Parish Council accepts that in respect of Area 1 this area includes the relatively new allotments
managed by Kings Hill parish Council and the sports pitches and pavilion which are all accessed by vehicles
from within Kings Hill which they were designed to serve although others from outside the Parish may use
them.

There are no properties within Area 1 and although there is no rule that, for example, one Parish cannot
have allotment land in another we note the Borough's view the statutory criteria have been met.

Although the wording of the 2007 Act is rather wide on the basis Kings Hill Parish Council is managing
these facilities primarily for its residents, we accept its transfer to Kings Hill.

With regard to Area 2 this comprises undeveloped land including open space and woodland. It includes
the Warren Wood Nature Park and is crossed and accessible by public footpaths MR114 and MR115 from
The Heath, East Malling plus the permissive paths that have been created. It acts as a green buffer
between East Malling and Kings Hill being used for recreation by residents of both Parishes and the wider
area.

The map of Area A2 has been drawn to exclude the existing properties in both Wateringbury Road and The
Heath which are all in East Malling.

However, if any development of the undeveloped areas fronting either road took place those properties
would end up in Kings Hill Parish creating a "pepper box" effect.

While views at the public meeting as to Area A1 were mixed but no one spoke in favour of transferring
Area A2 to Kings Hill Parish and the lodged Petition reflects that view.

Area A2 is allocated as "Natural Green Space" in respect of the nature park plus the other undeveloped
open space and woodland as recorded by the Borough Council in the consultation document.

The Parish Council shares the Borough's view that the transfer of this land would not meet the statutory
criteria. The area continues to be part and parcel of East Malling.

We therefore conclude that neither Area A2 nor B do not meet the statutory criteria so should remain in
East Malling and Wateringbury respectively.

Though we regret changing an historic boundary we do accept there is a case for transferring Area Al to
Kings Hill.

Please acknowledge safe receipt of this email and advise when this matter will be coming before members
please.

We have copies this to Wateringtbury and Teston Parish Councils.
Regards

Val Severn
Clerk to East Malling and Larkfield Parish Council

Page 84



01732 844546

East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council

Page 85



Page 86



Response 13

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 04 May 2016 09:05
To: Richard Beesley
Subject: FW: Boundary changes

From: Sharon Root

Sent: 04 May 2016 00:49
To: voting

Subject: Boundary changes

To whom it may concern,

| am very concerned about the proposed boundary changes, Kingshill seems to be taking over the area, you cant
possibly have houses with a kingshill address in East Malling! | also hate the thought that we will be losing valuable
green spaces between our villages, its just becoming an urban sprawl.

Please, dont agree to these proposals, | know there is a need to build houses, but why should heavily built up areas
have to provide the same land provision as less built up areas.

Maidstone borough council has ensured there is no green space left this side of maidstone, we have a responsibility
to help maintain some green space between here and London, just for the sake of one or two generations, like we
are the only people that matter! In a hundred years the same problems will exist, save some land for future
generations.

Once that land has gone it can never ever be returned to what it is now.

with Kind Regards,

Sharon Root
.Garner drive
East Malling
Kent

ME19 6 RT

Page 87


rbxe_18
Typewritten Text
Response 13


Page 88



Response 14

Teston Parish Council

Ms Julie Beilby 4™ May 201
Chief Executive ay 2016

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling ME19 4L.Z

Dear Ms Beilby,

Community Governance Review 2016 - East Malling & Larkfield, Kings Hill and
Wateringbury Parishes

We have become aware of the above review and we are concerned that Tonbridge & Malling
Borough Council will exercise its powers to effect changes to boundaries that are outlined within
the Draft Proposals.

Background

It is evident that Kings Hill Parish Council has pressed the review and we are concerned about the
possible long-term implications for Teston, Wateringbury and East Malling & Larkfield Parishes. To
be specific, we refer you to Teston Road. This runs from the junction of Malling Road and
Wateringbury Road roughly westwards until it comes to a dead-end, created when the airfield that
is now Kings Hill was established in 1940. In the Community Governance Review, area A1 abuts
the western end of this current cul-de-sac. The various development phases at Kings Hill have, on
occasion, raised the prospect of this cul-de-sac being opened to some vehicles, if only emergency
vehicles or buses. Should that happen at any time, it would presumably not be too long before
there was pressure to open it up for all vehicles.

Malling Road and Wateringbury Road through Teston, Wateringbury and East Malling & Larkfield
Parishes are already heavily used, particularly during rush-hours, even though these roads are
narrow, winding in places and with limited or no pavements for much of their length. We have
traffic surveys that demonstrate a considerable speeding problem on the Malling Road at the
northern end of Teston and we suspect that Wateringbury Road has similar issues.

Qur concern

We are strongly opposed to more vehicles being released onto Malling Road and Wateringbury
Road via a re-opened Teston Road. This proposed boundary change must only increase the
probability of such re-opening, as, presumably, Kings Hill Parish would press for a road link to the
east of their Parish, rather than being restricted to Ashton Way / Malling Road along its western
boundary.

Issues with Draft Proposal

We must also point to factual inaccuracies in the Draft Proposals:
On page 6 it states: “ ..... the area marked A1 ..... is already, or very soon will be, used by residents
of the parish of Kings Hill. It is accessible via Kings Hill parish, and is designed to serve the

Clerk: Michelle Tatton
Il Clarewood Drive, East Malling, Kent ME19 6PA

Telephone: (01732)q@-@aggestonparish@aol.com


rbxe_19
Typewritten Text
Response 14


residents of that community. ......”. That does not accord with the fact that, as the review itself
states, the Sports Ground is commercial. It is far from restricted to use by Kings Hill Parish
residents; users come from far afield to use the five football pitches, substantial car parking and
other facilities. Its scale was clearly designed not just to serve Kings Hill.

On page 6 it also states: “There are no residential properties in this area, and the only commercial
properties are the Sports Park itself”. While, as is stated in the Draft Proposals, there are no
residential properties within area A1, the nearby properties potentially most affected by activities at
the Sports Park are in East Malling & Larkfield Parish.

The process that must be followed and, as noted in the Draft Proposals, criteria that must be
applied are set out in the Local Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, part 4,
chapter 3, paragraph 93 i.e.:

3) The principal council must consult the following—

(a) the local government electors for the area under review;

(b) any other person or body (including a local authority) which appears to the principal council
to have an interest in the review.

4) The principal council must have regard to the need to secure that community governance within the
area under review—

@) reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area, and

(b) is effective and convenient.

(5) In deciding what recommendations to make, the principal council must take into account any other
arrangements (apart from those relating to parishes and their institutions)—

@) that have already been made, or

(b) that could be made,

for the purposes of community representation or community engagement in respect of the area
under review.

(6) The principal council must take into account any representations received in connection with the
review.
(7 As soon as practicable after making any recommendations, the principal council must—

(@) publish the recommendations; and
(b) take such steps as it considers sufficient to secure that persons who may be interested in
the review are informed of those recommendations.

We are not aware that consultation has been as legislated. We have made known our interest in
Kings Hill matters for several years, but only heard about this matter through local links.

While there are no residential properties within the area A1, the closest adjacent residential
properties are in East Malling & Larkfield Parish and, if this proposal is accepted, would remain so.
This proposal would therefore fail on criterion 4(b) above. As for the other criterion, as the sports
facilities are a commercial enterprise (not restricted to use by Kings Hill), we do not understand
why Parish boundaries have to be re-drawn to match their estate, as otherwise Parish boundaries
would be in perpetual flux all over the country.

Summary

We do not believe that the Draft Proposals reflect the reality of the situation and, as such, do not
meet the requirements of the above Act. We therefore request that the Draft Proposals are not
carried forward and that Parish boundaries remain as they now are.

Yours sincerely,

Mrs Michelle Tatton
Clerk

Copy: East Malling & Larkfield Parish Council, Wateringbury Parish Council
Clir Fay Gooch (Maidstone)

Page 90 2



Response 15

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 05 May 2016 16:26

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: CGR review 2016 Kings Hill expansion.

————— Original Message-----

From: Stephen Lockett_
Sent: 05 May 2016 15:35

To: voting

Subject: CGR review 2016 Kings Hill expansion.

Dear Mr Beesley,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed boundary changes and expansion of Kings Hill.

If the A1 and A2 boundary changes happen it would change the nature of East and West Malling forever, by
renaming the area Kings Hill it will be destined to become a large extension of the development to a level that
cannot be supported by local infrastructure.

It will remove the green boundary and amenity shared by all neighbouring parish residents.

It will damage heritage assets and conservation areas.

It will not protect the identities of East, West Malling and Wateringbury.

Just because Heath farm is owned by a new landowner who wishes to maximise its development potential why
should it be renamed. This will assist in the transformation of green open spaces into sprawling urban development.
Although it will not help Rouse Kent | feel it is much better to develop on Brown field sites such as Aylesford
newsprint with more affordable housing to assist our existing local communities.

On Google maps show the outline of roundabouts with exits to nowhere are already present, so it seems the
developer is confident to get permission, this should not happen.

Thank you for taking my comments into consideration.

Yours sincerely

Stephen Lockett

East Malling
ME19 6AU

Sent from my iPad

Page 91


rbxe_20
Typewritten Text
Response 15


Page 92



Response 16

Tonbridge and Malling Liberal Democrats

Iulie Beilby 3rd May 2016
Chief Executive

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent ME19 417

Dear Sirs,

Community Governance Review — affecting East Malling & Larkfield, Kings Hill and Wateringbury
Parishes

Thank you for consulting with us upon the above.

We agree with the proposal to transfer area Al from East Malling to Kings Hill Parish. The area does
not contain any residential properties and the allotments are clearly intended to be used by Kings
Hill residents. While the sports facilities are used by residents from outside Kings Hill the only access
by road is from within Kings Hill itself. In the circumstances, while we are reluctant to see an historic
boundary changed, we agree that it would be consistent with effective and convenient community
governance to transfer area Al to Kings Hill.

We agree with you that areas A2 shouid remain within East Malling and B within Wateringbury.
Area A2, with its areas of open space, public footpaths, bridleways and the Warren Wood Nature
Reserve, is an area that is not used solely by Kings Hill residents. Furthermore, we agree that if
further infill development occurs on Wateringbury Road or The Heath this would present difficulties
with existing properties being in East Malling while new properties would be within Kings Hill. This,
in our view, would not be a good reflection of the community identity or interests of any the
residents. The same would apply in relation to area B should that area be transferred and later infilt
development takes place in Danns Lane or Canon Lane.

In summary, therefore, we agree with the proposals as presented.

Yours faithfully,

David Thornewell

H..o-""’“d—

Chairman

Chairman: Mr David Thornewell, _arkﬁeld, Kent, ME20 6TQ
Page 93



rbxe_21
Typewritten Text
Response 16


Page 94



Response 17

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 09 May 2016 08:42

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Objection to proposed boundary change for East Malling & Larkfield / Kings
Hill

From: Gordon Taylor

Sent: 08 May 2016 20:13

To: voting

Subject: Objection to proposed boundary change for East Malling & Larkfield / Kings Hill

Dear Sir,

| wish to register my opinion that there should be no changes to the existing parish boundary between East Malling
& Larkfield / Kings Hill.

There seems to be no valid reason to change this historical division and | think the parish boundary should remain as
it stands. The Kings Hill development has already extended far beyond the original proposals and it if the clear area
of open space is lost between the two areas, the unique character of this as yet unspoilt area will be lost forever.

Yours faithfully,

Gordon Taylor

Page 95


rbxe_22
Typewritten Text
Response 17


Page 96



Response 18

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 09 May 2016 08:43

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Proposed Boundary Change East Malling & Larkfield and King's Hill

From: Susan Taylor

Sent: 08 May 2016 19:18

To: voting

Subject: Proposed Boundary Change East Malling & Larkfield and King's Hill

Dear Sir,

| strongly believe that there should be no changes to the existing parish boundary between East Malling & Larkfield
and King’s Hill. | can see no strong reason to change this historical division and believe the parish boundary should
remain as its stands. King’s Hill has already developed far beyond the original proposals and it is important that a
clear area of open space is maintained between the two to ensure that each retains its unique character.

Yours faithfully,

Mrs Sue Taylor

Page 97


rbxe_23
Typewritten Text
Response 18


Page 98



Response 19

The Rocks

I The Rocks Road
East Malling

Kent

ME19 6AX

8™ May 2016

Ms Beilby

Chief Executive

Tonbridge & Malling Council
Gibson Building

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4L.Z

Dear Ms Beilby,

Review of parish electoral arrangements under the Local government
Involvement in Public Health Act 2007:

Proposal to amend the parish boundary between the parishes of between
Kings Hill and East Malling and Larkfield parishes.

We are writing to express our grave concern and objections regarding the above
proposed planning arrangements by TMBC.

First of all we wish to object to the manner in which these changes are being
proposed with insufficient consideration of the negative impact upon residents
of East Malling. For example, the Broadwater farm maps do not show
designated conservation areas and the fact that these should be protected.

Secondly, the statutory criteria state that:

"The principal council must have regard to the need to secure that community
governance within the area under review - (a) reflects the identities and
interests of the community in that area and (b) is effective and convenient”.

The proposal to change the boundary Al and A2 would lead to a blurring of the
identities of East Malling and West Malling. The conservation areas and historic
and heritage assets of East Malling and West Malling would be irrevocably lost
for all future generations.

Page 99 1


rbxe_24
Typewritten Text
Response 19


Furthermore by renaming the area Kings Hill, it will inevitably lead to an
extension of Kings Hill. Unlike the original Kings Hill development, which had
planned infrastructure and was on a Brown Field site, this will cut into the
countryside, changing green spaces to a conglomeration of buildings with no
carefully planned infrastructure. There are many Brown Field sites in TMBC and
a more responsible approach to the identity and interest of East Malling and the
area as a whole would be to proactively search and identify these sites. The
proposed change of boundaries is simply a smokescreen to permit landowners to
maximise development for personal financial gain. It had no merit in terms of
abiding by the principle of reflecting the identities and interests of the
community.

East Malling is currently a village with its own identity, community activities and
neighbourhood. WE consider that TMBC should protect the separation of village
identities. This should include protecting conservation areas and the open
countryside. Historically East Malling is of considerable interest and the
current proposal would damage the whole village forever. The proposal will lead
to a quiet, peaceful village being subsumed within a sprawl of buildings with no
corridor without housing and little community life and inadequate infrastructure.
The impact on East Malling will be very damaging. It would not be effective or
convenient. It would blur identities and lead to unnecessary complications at
local level, thereby leading to inefficiency and ineffective governance.

There is some evidence fo suggest that planning permission in principle is being
considered for developments and that these proposed boundary changes are
being proposed to accommodate these proposed planning developments from
landowners. This is against the interests of the local community and raises
serious questions about the motivation and purpose of these proposed changes in
local governance. The principles should be for the community and not for
prospective developers to make personal profit. As indicated above, Brown Field
sites should be the priority for developments and these would go some way to
ensuring towns and villages maintain their identities and that we do not end up
with a sprawling mass of urbanisation across the Kent countryside.

To conclude, we urge TMBC to abolish this proposal.
Yours sincerely,

Ann Baumber and Michael Mansell

cc Richard Beesley

Page 100 2



Response 20

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 09 May 2016 08:44

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: CGR 2016 Proposed boundary change Kings Hill and East Malling & Larkfield
Parish

From

Sent: 06 May 2016 21:02

To: voting

Subject: CGR 2016 Proposed boundary change Kings Hill and East Malling & Larkfield Parish

Mr & Mrs Church
Rocks Close

East Malling

Kent ME19 6AE

5th May 2016
Dear Julie Beilby

Re:Community Governance Review 2016 - Boundary between Kings Hill and East
Malling & Larkfield Parish

With regards to the above proposal we are writing to advise that our family are very much
against the alteration to the boundary between Kings Hill and the East Malling and
Larkfield parish.

As there are currently no residential properties on the area which Kings Hill wishes to
obtain why is a Community Governance Review (CGR) taking place at all ? The area in
guestion does not currently have any residents and therefore no interests and identities
of individuals need to be considered and there would not be any beneficial gain for the
boundary to be altered.

We are very fortunate as residents of East Malling to still have natural beauty and
conservation within our parish. We should protect this for the sake of the community and
for our future generations so that they can have the same enjoyment as we currently get
from our surroundings.

It is our understanding that some of the land in question is ‘Grade A’ farmland and that
Broadwater farmland houses a listed building.

Many of the local residents have chosen to live in the East Malling village and immediate
vicinity because it has retained much of its heritage. Once taken this will be gone forever
which will be tragic.

It is obvious that by changing the boundary as requested by Kings Hill Parish Council we

will one day see the concrete jungle which consumes Kings Hill invading closer to East
Page 101


rbxe_25
Typewritten Text
Response 20


malling suffocating and diminishing the natural beauty, paths, walks and landscape
which have traditionally stood within the parish for many years.

It is extremely apparent to differentiate the hardcore physicality's of Kings Hill compared
to the traditional East Malling parish. It may be at a whim that these boundaries could
possibly be altered but there will be a long term devastation to nature. If this boundary
were to change where would the limits end. Would Kings Hill continue to grow and
dominate the landscape like a cancer through the neighbouring parishes?

We strongly appose this change.
Yours sincerely

Mr S Church

Mrs J Church

Miss L Church

Mr B Church

Mr S Church

Page 102



Response 21

Richard Beesley

From: voting

Sent: 09 May 2016 10:48

To: Richard Beesley

Subject: FW: Community Governance Review 2016 - Parish Boundaries - East Malling and
Larkfield/Wateringbury

From: paul sharp

Sent: 09 May 2016 09:24

To: voting

Cc: Gel Sharp

Subject: Community Governance Review 2016 - Parish Boundaries - East Malling and Larkfield/Wateringbury

Dear Mr Beesley/Ms Beilby

| write to express my concern and strong objection to the potential realignment of the parish boundaries and
in particular areas A2 and B as depicted on the draft proposals.

The fact that Kings Hill Parish Council has sought to realign these boundaries encapsulating additional land
would suggest they have intent to develop this land further in line with Kings Hill expansion plans.

Having lived on Kings Hill for three years upon moving out of London, | can appreciate the environment
created is ideal for a number of families with housing and amenities to hand, but not for everyone. The
estate is of significant size already and future development will impact on the adjacent land and usage of
that space along with the overall aesthetics of the rural environment.

I chose to move my family from Kings Hill onto The Heath in East Malling as the road is surrounded by
farm land, woodland and rural areas giving a fantastic, quiet environment for a family to grow with nature
on the door step, the Kings Hill environment wasn't for us as we appreciate and enjoy a more peaceful way
of life.

By realigning the boundaries | feel this would have a direct impact on both the environment and my family's
existing way of life will be compromised should future development be proposed.

I do hope mine and other resident's in the area's concerns will be taken under consideration and these plans
be rejected.

I shall be watching the outcome with anticipation.
With best regards,

Paul Sharp

[l The Heath

East Malling

West Malling
ME19 6JL

Page 103


rbxe_26
Typewritten Text
Response 21


Page 104



Response 22

Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental H'e.alth

Tonbridge and Malting Council T Lavenders Road

Gibson Building West Malling

Gibson Drive Kent

Kings Hill P ME19 6HR

West Malling ¢ ; i

mers a4tz red 26 APR 2016 RECEIVELD 16 APR 2016 23" April, 2016
i L Pl /__1[{5’1%3

Dear Mr Humphrey

We Strongly Object to Development in the Proposed Development in the Broadwater and East Malling Area,
and to changes in the Parish Boundary, on the following grounds :

Development Sites

We are all familiar now with threats visited on irreplaceable rural landscape by easy and profitable
development on greenfield sites, irrespective of the impact on local communities and the overburdened

infrastructure and services they depend on.

There are many and sufficient brownfield sites in our area to address sensible development, and a way must
be found to enabie such solutions. Surely the time is with us urgently to look at ways to equalise incentive for
proposed development on brownfield sites as opposed to precious greenfield landscape.

We look to our elected parliamentary and focal representatives to recognise and protect the quintessential
character of Kentish landscape with its spirit and sense of place, and all the benefits that these entail.

Two areas in which we have a particular interest :

*  The Research Station - this is a worldwide contributor to food crop production, with its
innovative rootstocks and fruit development programmes. Along with all the standard
arguments in favour of scientific work, Kent should be proud and supportive of this important

institution,

*  Residents in the existing TMBC designated ‘New Barns and Broadwater Farm Conservation
Area’ wonder why this area is even included in the list of proposed sites, bearing in mind that
the Conservation Area has already been recognised as Important both visually and historically.

Parish Boundary

The growth of Kings Hill — already a small town — has inevitably led to pressure in the surrounding towns and
villages, owing to wholly inadequate essential amenities within its own boundaries. The character of Town
Malling in recent years has increasingly been compromised by inaccessibility and damaging pressure on

facilities and infrastructure.

We very much object to the proposed Parlsh Boundary change, and the consequential further extension of this
very different community, overwhelming and urbanising rural hamlets and farmland,

Yours sincerely

MR AND MRS A. R, DRAKE

L Dy ae
LR .

Cc : Sasha Luck, Sophie Shrubséle, Brian Ltikels, Roger Roud,'[)'aniél: Mafkh’ah‘n, Trudy Dean, David Thornewell,
Tom Tugendhat

Page 105



rbxe_27
Typewritten Text
Response 22


Page 106



Agenda Iltem 5

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
20 October 2016

Report of the Chief Executive
Part 1- Public

Delegated

1 2018 REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES

To grant delegated authority to allow the Chief Executive to respond to the
current consultation on the initial proposals for Parliamentary
Constituencies, following discussion at the Council’s Electoral Review
Working Group

11 Background

111 The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) are an independent body with
responsibility to review the current Parliamentary Constituency boundaries. Under
the Parliamentary Voting System and Constituencies Act 2011 they are required
to complete their current review ahead of the 2020 General Election. This review,
known as the 2018 Review, includes a reduction in the number of MPs from 650
to 600 across the UK and equalises the number of registered electors per MP
across the country.

112 On Tuesday 13 September the BCE published their initial proposals for
Parliamentary Constituencies in England. Similar bodies are developing proposals
for other parts of the UK. These initial proposals are open to public consultation,
with the deadline for responses of 5 December 2016.

12  TMBC response to the consultation

121 The TMBC Electoral Review Working Group (ERWG) is due to meet to discuss
the initial proposals, and to formulate a response to the BCE in response to them.
The timing of the publication of the initial proposals, in relation to the pre-arranged
meeting of General Purposes, mean that it is not possible for ERWG to prepare a
response to present to GP for approval in time for the close of the public
consultation.

122 Therefore, Members are invited to agree that the Chief Executive, in consultation
with the Leader, Deputy Leader and Chair of General Purposes, may finalise the
response to the consultation following the meeting of the ERWG, on behalf of
TMBC.

Page 107

General Purposes - Part 1 Public 20 October 2016



123 Individual Members, and political groups and associations may submit their own
response to the consultation direct to the BCE.
13 Legal Implications
131 None.
14  Financial and Value for Money Considerations
141 None.
15 Risk Assessment
1.5.1 If delegated authority is not given, it will not be possible to submit a TMBC
response to the consultation within the timeframe specified.
1.6 Equality Impact Assessment
16.1 The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance
to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end
users.Policy Considerations
1.7 Recommendations
1.71 Itis recommended that Members:
1) Agree that the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, Deputy
Leader and Chair of General Purposes, may finalise the response to the
BCE consultation on the initial proposals for Parliamentary Constituencies
following the meeting of the ERWG, on behalf of TMBC.
Background papers: contact: Richard Beesley
Nil
Julie Beilby

Chief Executive

General Purposes - Part 1 Public Page 108 20 October 2016



Agenda Iltem 6

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
20 October 2016

Report of the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

Part 1- Public

For decision

1 REQUEST FOR DISPENSATION — CODE OF CONDUCT

11 Introduction

111  This report asks Members to consider a request for a dispensation under section
33 of the Localism Act 2011 to enable Councillor Mark Davis to participate in
meetings of the Planning and Transportation Advisory Board and other meetings
where the Local Plan is under consideration.

1.2 DISPENSATIONS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011

1.2.1 Members will be familiar with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and
supporting regulations concerning Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI). In
addition to the requirement to disclose to the Monitoring Officer the existence of
any DPI, Members must also comply with specified requirements where they are
present at a meeting of the Council and have a DPI in any matter to be
considered, or being considered at the meeting. Specifically, a Member must not

(1) participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting, or
(2) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting.

1.2.2 The Council’s adopted Code of Conduct imposes identical requirements in relation
to Members with an Other Significant Interest (OSl). The Code further requires
that Members with a DPI/ OSI in a matter under consideration must withdraw from
the meeting room whenever it becomes apparent that the business is being
considered and not seek to improperly seek to influence a decision about that
business.

1.2.3 Under section 33 of the Localism Act, the Council may, on receipt of a written
request to the Monitoring Officer, grant a dispensation to councillors and co-opted
members relieving them from restrictions on participating, or participating further,
or voting or further voting in meetings where consideration is being given to an
item of business in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

age 109

General Purposes Committee — Part 1 Pub’i:(): 20 October 2016



1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

The Borough Council may grant a dispensation only if, having regard to all
relevant circumstances, it considers that

(a) without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from participating in
any particular business would be so great a proportion of the body transacting
the business as to impede the transaction of the business; or

(b) without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups on the
body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to alter the
likely outcome of any vote relating to the business; or

(c) granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the Authority's
area; or

(d) without the dispensation each member of the Authority's executive would be
prohibited from participating in any particular business to be transacted by the
Authority's executive; or

(e) it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

-A dispensation must specify the period for which it has effect, and the period
specified may not exceed four years

Under the Council’s constitution, dispensations under paragraphs (a) and (d)
above may be granted by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee and the Independent
Persons. Dispensations under paragraphs (b), (c) and (e) may only be granted by
the General Purposes Committee, in consultation with the Independent Persons.
The present request does not fall within paragraphs (a) or (d) and the matter is
therefore referred to the General Purposes Committee for consideration.

Request from Councillor Davis

Councillor Davis is Chairman of the Street Scene and Environment Services
Advisory Board, and a member of the Area 1 Planning Committee, Planning &
Transportation Advisory Board, Finance, Innovation & Property Advisory Board
and the Housing Associations Liaison Panel.

As many Members will be aware, Councillor Davis is a Solicitor and a partner in
the local firm Warners Solicitors. His firm acts for a number of landowners in the
Borough and Councillor Davis has regularly declared an interest at previous
meetings of the Council when an item of business has either related to, or had the
potential to relate to land in the ownership of one of their clients. Such interests
have not been DPIs but in certain circumstances have been capable of amounting
to an OSI. Ultimately, the existence or otherwise of an interest has been fact
specific on each occasion and will depend upon the content of the report in
question.

The emerging local plan has presented particular challenges to Councillor Davis in
that the potential exists for clients of his firm to have an interest in land which may
or may not come forward for designation through the local plan process. However,
by taking the cautious approach and declaring an interest Councillor Davis has

General Purposes Committee — Part 1 ﬁlﬁ)&x‘e 110 20 October 2016



1.3.4

1.3.5

1.3.6

1.4

1.4.1

1.5

1.5.1

1.6

1.6.1

then been precluded from discussing the local plan and furthermore has been
required to leave the room. Councillor Davis does not seek a dispensation to vote
on any such reports, but does seek the permission of this Committee to allow him
to remain in the room and contribute to the discussions.

Reports on the local plan have been considered by the Planning & Transportation
Advisory Board (of which Councillor Davis is a member) or by Cabinet, so it would
be appropriate for any dispensation to be limited to meetings of these
Committees.

The grounds for Councillor Davis’ request for the dispensation are set out in his
letter at Annex 1.

Consultation will take place with the 2 Independent Persons (David Ashton and
John Gledhill) in advance of the meeting of the Committee. Any comments will be
reported at the meeting.

Legal Implications

As set out above.

Financial and Value for Money Implications
None arising out of this report.
Recommendations

Members are requested to consider Councillor Davis’ request for a dispensation. If
approved, it is suggested that the dispensation remain in effect until the next local
elections in May 2019.

contact: Adrian Stanfield

Adrian Stanfield
Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

General Purposes Committee — Part 1 Pubr_@age 111 20 October 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

Clir Mark Davis 38 Old Hadlow Road
Tonbridge

B h Councillor for C Green Ward
oroug unciior 1or ‘.age Kent TN10 4EY

Tel: 01732 360412
E-mail: mark.davis@tmbc.gov.uk

Mr Adrian Stanfield

Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer

Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council 6 October 2016
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent ME19 4LZ

Dear Adrian

General Purposes Committee 20 October 2016
Request for Dispensation — Code of Conduct

You have requested that | write to you as Monitoring Officer in support of the application for
dispensation to enable me to participate in Council meetings, particularly meetings of the
Planning and Transportation Advisory Board and Planning Committee Meetings where |
would otherwise have to withdraw from the meeting entirely by virtue of my potentially having
an Other Significant Interest.

As a Partner in Warners Solicitors | have hitherto taken the view that | should not participate
in proceedings at meetings which involve clients of my firm in case there is a suggestion that
| have influenced the decision of the committee for my client’s benefit. | accept that there
are a number of considerations which would determine whether or not | have an Other
Significant Interest in each case but | have tended to take the cautious approach and
withdraw when | know a client of my firm to be involved. Although | have on occasion
exercised my right to speak before the application is debated by members of the committee
and then withdraw.

Originally | simply retired to the public seats during the relevant agenda items and observed
the proceedings of the committee from there. But it was brought to my attention that the
Code of Conduct required me to withdraw from the meeting completely. As | have discussed
with you on occasion in the past, | take the view that this puts me in a worse position than
other members of the public and on occasion inhibits my duty to act in the best interests of
my client by preventing me from observing the proceedings of the committee and the debate
which has led to the decision taken. For example, if the decision is to refuse a planning
application submitted by my client | would like to be able to understand the reasons for the
decision by listening to the debate with a view to advising my client as to the implications
thereof which | would be perfectly entitled to do if | were not a member of the Council.

This has been brought into sharper focus recently relation to agenda items of the Planning

and Transportation Advisory Board regarding the Local Plan. | attended and participated in
the initial discussion of that board concerning the consultation document but it occurred to

Page 113



me at that meeting that there may be clients of Warners whose land holdings are affected by
the consultation document one way or another and | have subsequently discovered that to
be the case. | have therefore not attended subsequent meetings of the Cabinet where the
Local Plan has been discussed although | would have liked to have done so. Indeed my
specialist field of law is commercial property work which includes advising on development
sites, and | believe that my qualifications and experience may well be beneficial to other
members who might find my contribution to debate useful.

| therefore seek dispensation from the requirement to leave the room on these occasions
and if the General Purposes Committee deems it appropriate to allow me to participate in the
debate, although not to take part in any vote.

With kind regards

Yours sincerely

Mad-

M O Davis

Page 114



Agenda Item 7

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
20 October 2016

Report of the Director of Central Services
Part 1- Public

Delegated

1 UPDATE OF THE FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT POLICY

The Flexible Retirement Policy is set out in Annex 1 to this report. This
policy was last updated in October 2013. All of the Council’s Personnel
policies are periodically reviewed to ensure that they are fit for purpose and
continue to be legally compliant. This report recommends a couple of minor
amendments to the Policy and proposes the updated policy in Annex 2 to
this report (the amendments are highlighted in italics).

11 Recommended changes

111 Itis RECOMMENDED that a new Section 2, entitled “Principles”, is added to the
existing policy. This gives a more detailed overview than the current policy of the
considerations taken into account when considering requests for flexible
retirement. Furthermore it provides a contingency for any future changes to the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations that may become effective
between scheduled meetings of this Committee. The recommended new section
also reinforces the Council’s ongoing commitment to equality issues.

1.1.2 Section 2:3 of the current Flexible Retirement Policy states that one of the criteria
for agreeing to a request for flexible retirement will be that there is “no cost to the
Council”. Successive legislative changes to the Local Government Pension
Scheme entitlements over a number of years mean that such a blanket
requirement would now constitute age discrimination (as in all likelihood only
those who reached their 60 birthday on 1 April 2016 could meet the “no cost”
criterion). It is therefore RECOMMENDED that the phrase “where there is no cost
to the Council” is replaced by “where there are clear financial or operational
advantages”.

113 Members will have noted that the updated Policy no longer stipulates a
requirement to pro rata the Essential Car User allowance for those who are
flexibly retiring. This amendment is RECOMMENDED to align the entitlement to
this allowance with other categories of part time workers within the Council, and
thus avoid potential age discrimination.

12 Legal Implications

Page 115

General Purposes - Part 1 Public 20 October 2016



121 The recommended amendments to the Flexible Retirement Policy are compliant
with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2007 and 2014, and the
Equality Act 2010.

13  Financial and Value for Money Considerations

13.1 Itis imperative that the Council has HR policies that are transparent and fair not
only in the interests of natural justice, but also in order to avoid costly legal
challenge.

14 Risk Assessment

141 The recommendations outlined in Sections 1:1:2 and 1:1:3 above mitigate against
challenges of age discrimination.

15 Equality Impact Assessment

151 The recommendations outlined in this report make a positive contribution to
promoting equality.

16 Recommendations

16.1 Members are RECOMMENDED to adopt the updated Flexible Retirement Policy
as set out in Annex 2 to this report.

Background papers: contact: Delia Gordon

Nil

Adrian Stanfield
Director of Central services and Monitoring Officer

General Purposes - Part 1 Public Page 116 20 October 2016



ANNEX 1

Flexible Retirement Policy

1

1:1

1:2

1:3

1:4

1:5

2:1

Introduction - The retirement routes for members of the Local

Government Pension Scheme

There are various retirement routes available to employees who have contributed to
the Local Government Pension Scheme (the LGPS). The Normal Retirement Age
when employees can retire and receive full pension benefits from the LGPS is their
state pension age, or age 65, whichever is later.

Voluntary retirement is permitted from the LGPS at any point between age 55 and
75. However, unless they are protected by the “Rule of 85 years” those who retire
before their Normal Retirement Age will receive a reduced pension to fund the
“cost” to the LGPS of their early retirement. Likewise, their pension will increase if
they retire later.

The LGPS rules require pension benefits to be drawn by the age of 75.

Flexible retirement enables employees to draw their pension benefits and to
continue working for the Council and receiving a salary in accordance with
Regulation 30(6) of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.
Flexible retirement can enable an employee to phase into retirement by:

> reducing their working hours and/or
> moving to a job on a lower salary.

Employees who have been a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme for
at least 3 months (or have transferred in previous pension benefits), and have
attained at least age 55, have the right to make a formal request for flexible
retirement. The procedure for making and considering such requests is set out in
Section 2 below.

Requests for a reduction in working hours from employees who are not members of
the LGPS will be considered in accordance with the Flexible Working, Home Working
and Time Off Policy.

Flexible Retirement Procedure

Individual circumstances are very different and actual pension benefits will be based
on entitlements built up over a period of time, and, in some cases, will include
pension “pots” that have been transferred into the LGPS. Therefore, employees

Page 117



2:2

2:3

2:4

A\

2:5

2:6

considering applying for flexible retirement should contact Personnel Services who
will obtain an estimate of their pension benefits. This will include details of any
reductions to these benefits if drawn before Normal Pension Age, and will specify
any pension fund cost that there would be to the Council if it agreed to the request
for flexible retirement.

Only one request per individual per annum may be made for an estimate of pension
benefits. It is also recommended that once the estimate has been obtained those
considering applying for flexible retirement should seek independent financial advice
concerning the potential long term impact of “early retirement” upon their overall
income levels.

Requests for flexible retirement will normally be agreed to only where the reduction
in hours and/or grade achieves an immediate overall reduction in salary of 40% and
where there is no cost to the Council.

If an individual decides to make a request for flexible retirement it should be in
writing to the Service’s relevant Chief Officer and should address the following
points:

What is your proposed flexible retirement working pattern —i.e. do you propose to
transfer to an identified lower graded position within the Council , or to reduce the
number of hours that you work? How will this new working pattern, reduction in
hours etc, benefit both yourself and the service?

When would you like this new arrangement to begin?

Bearing in mind that there is no longer an age for compulsory retirement, how do
you intend to “phase” your retirement —i.e. how long do you envisage working the
requested pattern and when do you intend to fully retire?

You should attach the estimate obtained by Personnel Services (referred to in
Section 2:1 above) to the request to enable the Chief Officer to assess whether there
will be a pension fund cost to the Council.

The relevant Chief Officer, in consultation with the Personnel Manager, will consider
requests on business grounds in accordance with the needs of the service and based
on the case put forward. This consideration will include an assessment of whether
the flexible retirement would have a detrimental effect on the Council, its service
recipients or other employees; it would also identify and consider any arrangements
that might need to be made to ensure continuity of service.

In very exceptional circumstances there may be a cost to the Council, incurred by
waiving the pension reduction for those who retire before Normal Pension Age
because the Council may need to make an upfront lump sum payment to the
pension fund to “pay for” the retirement. In such rare situations, the decision as to

Page 118



2:7

2:8

2:9

2:10

3:1

3:2

3:3

3:4

whether or not to agree to the flexible retirement will need to be authorised by the
Chairman of the General Purposes Committee and the Cabinet Member for Finance
and Health (agreed by the General Purposes Committee September 2006).

Once a decision has finally been reached, the Chief Officer will advise the employee
in writing on the outcome of their request for flexible retirement.

There is no trial period for flexible retirement because once it has been agreed, the
decision cannot be reversed due to the direct impact upon the pension benefits.

Employees may raise any complaint they may have about the operation of this policy
through the Council’s Grievance Procedure.

Use of Tonbridge & Malling’s Flexible Retirement Policy will be subject to equalities
monitoring. Any data gathered for this purpose will not identify individual employees
and will be anonymous.

Implications of Flexible Retirement to the employee

The annual pension and lump sum retirement grant are paid with effect from the
date of flexible retirement Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) may be drawn
if the employee so chooses.

Employees taking flexible retirement may contribute to the LGPS in the new or part
time job in the form of an additional pension that will be drawn when they finally
retire. This “new” pension will be a separate pension accrual.

If the employee reduces hours in the same job, or if there is no break in service and
they start a new job, they will retain the recognition of continuous service for
purposes of annual leave and sick pay, and for employment rights such as protection
against unfair dismissal. The annual leave allowance will be based on the entitlement
of the post in which the flexible retiree is working, and will be reduced pro rata for
the number of hours worked.

Employees granted flexible retirement on the basis of reduced hours, and who have
an entitlement to a leased car under the Council’s scheme, will have their “Limit of
Three Year Cost” in the scheme reduced pro rata to their reduction in hours. This
reduction will take place on the same date as the reduction in hours takes effect.

Similarly a pro rata reduction in allowance will apply to flexibly retiring employees
who have opted into the Leased Car Cash Alternative Scheme. (Agreed by MT
15/1/2008).

Page 119



3:5 Any allowances such as that for telephones and essential car user status will also be
reduced pro rata to the reduction in hours. In cases where the individual starts a new
job, the entitlement to various allowances will be that pertaining to the new job. The
changes in entitlement will take place on the same date that the reduction in hours
or new job takes effect.

3:6 The amended terms and conditions will be specified in a variation to contract
document to be signed by the employee and retained on their personnel file.

April 2014

Page 120



Annex 2 — draft updated policy

Flexible Retirement Policy

1

1:1

1:2

1:3
1:4

1:5

2:2

Introduction - The retirement routes for members of the Local
Government Pension Scheme

There are various retirement routes available to employees who have
contributed to the Local Government Pension Scheme (the LGPS). The
Normal Retirement Age when employees can retire and receive full pension
benefits from the LGPS is their state pension age.

Voluntary retirement is permitted from the LGPS at any point between age 55
and 75. However, unless they are protected by the “Rule of 85 years” those
who retire before their Normal Retirement Age will receive a reduced pension
to fund the “cost” to the LGPS of their early retirement. Likewise, their pension
will increase if they retire later.

The LGPS rules require pension benefits to be drawn by the age of 75.

Flexible retirement enables employees to draw their pension benefits and to
continue working for the Council and receiving a salary in accordance with
Regulation 30(6) of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013. Flexible retirement can enable an employee to phase into retirement by:

> reducing their working hours and/or
> moving to a job on a lower salary.

Employees who have been a member of the Local Government Pension
Scheme for at least 3 months (or have transferred in previous pension
benefits), and have attained at least age 55, have the right to make a formal
request for flexible retirement. The procedure for making and considering
such requests is set out in Section 2 below.

Requests for a reduction in working hours from employees who are not
members of the LGPS will be considered in accordance with the Flexible
Working, Home Working and Time Off Policy.

Principles

The Council will consider all requests for flexible retirement, and will reach a
decision by taking into account a range of factors including; the financial
implications, impact on service delivery, skills and skills retention, and
employment law.

Each decision will be made free from discrimination on the grounds of any
protected characteristic — age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or

Page 121



2:3

3:1

3:2

3:3

34

civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual
orientation.

Decisions relating to flexible retirement and the release of pension benefits
will be in line with the current pension regulations. These regulations may be
updated from time to time and the Council will default to the regulations if the
policy is not explicit on any current or future regulation.

Flexible Retirement Procedure

Individual circumstances are very different and actual pension benefits will be
based on entitlements built up over a period of time, and, in some cases, will
include pension “pots” that have been transferred into the LGPS. Therefore,
employees considering applying for flexible retirement should contact
Personnel Services who will obtain a full estimate of their pension benefits.
This will include details of any reductions to these benefits if drawn before
Normal Pension Age, and will specify any pension fund cost that there would
be to the Council if it agreed to the request for flexible retirement.

Only one request per individual per annum may be made for an estimate of
pension benefits. It is also recommended that once the estimate has been
obtained those considering applying for flexible retirement should seek
independent financial advice concerning the potential long term impact of
“early retirement” upon their overall income levels.

Requests for flexible retirement will normally be agreed to only where the
reduction in hours and/or grade achieves an immediate overall reduction in
salary of 40% and where there are clear financial or operational advantages.

If an individual decides to make a request for flexible retirement it should be in
writing to the Service’s relevant Chief Officer and should address the following
points:

What is your proposed flexible retirement working pattern —i.e. do you
propose to transfer to an identified lower graded position within the Council, or
to reduce the number of hours that you work? How will this new working
pattern, reduction in hours etc., benefit both yourself and the service?

When would you like this new arrangement to begin?

Bearing in mind that there is no longer an age for compulsory retirement, how
do you intend to “phase” your retirement — i.e. how long do you envisage
working the requested pattern and when do you intend to fully retire?

You should attach the full estimate obtained by Personnel Services (referred
to in Section 3:1 above) to the request to enable the Chief Officer to assess
whether there will be a pension fund cost to the Council.

Page 122



3:5

3:6

3.7

3:8

39

3:10

4:1

4:2

4:3

The relevant Chief Officer, in consultation with the Personnel Manager, will
consider requests on business grounds in accordance with the needs of the
service and based on the case put forward. This consideration will include an
assessment of whether the flexible retirement would have a detrimental effect
on the Council, its service recipients or other employees; it would also identify
and consider any arrangements that might need to be made to ensure
continuity of service.

In circumstances where there is a cost to the Council, incurred by waiving the
pension reduction for those who retire before Normal Pension Age (because
the Council may need to make an upfront lump sum payment to the pension
fund to “pay for” the retirement), the decision as to whether or not to agree to
the flexible retirement will need to be authorised by the Chairman of the
General Purposes Committee and the Cabinet Member for Finance,
Innovation and Property.

Once a decision has finally been reached, the Chief Officer will advise the
employee in writing on the outcome of their request for flexible retirement.

There is no trial period for flexible retirement because once it has been
agreed; the decision cannot be reversed due to the direct impact upon the
pension benefits.

Employees may raise any complaint they may have about the operation of this
policy through the Council’'s Grievance Procedure.

Use of Tonbridge & Malling’s Flexible Retirement Policy will be subject to
equalities monitoring. Any data gathered for this purpose will not identify
individual employees and will be anonymous.

Implications of Flexible Retirement to the employee

The annual pension and lump sum retirement grant are paid with effect from
the date of flexible retirement Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) may
be drawn if the employee so chooses.

Employees taking flexible retirement may contribute to the LGPS in the new or
part time job in the form of an additional pension that will be drawn when they
finally retire. This “new” pension will be a separate pension accrual.

If the employee reduces hours in the same job, or if there is no break in
service and they start a new job, they will retain the recognition of continuous
service for purposes of annual leave and sick pay, and for employment rights
such as protection against unfair dismissal. The annual leave allowance will
be based on the entitlement of the post in which the flexible retiree is working,
and will be reduced pro rata for the number of hours worked.

Page 123



4:4

4:5

4:6

Employees granted flexible retirement on the basis of reduced hours, and who
have an entitlement to a leased car under the Council’s scheme, will have
their “Limit of Three Year Cost” in the scheme reduced pro rata to their
reduction in hours. This reduction will take place on the same date as the
reduction in hours takes effect.

Similarly a pro rata reduction in allowance will apply to flexibly retiring
employees who have opted into the Leased Car Cash Alternative Scheme,
and who are eligible for a telephone allowance. (Agreed by MT 15/1/2008).

In cases where the individual starts a new job, the entitlement to various
allowances will be that pertaining to the new job. The changes in entitlement
will take place on the same date that the reduction in hours or new job takes
effect.

The amended terms and conditions will be specified in a variation to contract
document to be signed by the employee and retained on their personnel file.

April 2014

Updated October 2016

Page 124



Agenda Iltem 8

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT
INFORMATION

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Apologies for absence
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Minutes of Electoral Review Working Group
	Report of Chief Executive
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3
	Annex 4
	Annex 5
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	5 2018 Review of Parliamentary Constituencies
	6 Request for Dispensation - Code of Conduct
	Annex

	7 Update of the Flexible Retirement Policy
	Annex 1
	Annex 2

	8 Urgent Items
	9 Exclusion of Press and Public
	10 Urgent Items



